
Colfax City Council Meetings are ADA compliant. If you need special assistance to 

participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (530) 346-2313 at least 72 hours 

prior to make arrangements for ensuring your accessibility. 

August 12, 2020 

Page 1 of 3 

City Council Meeting 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, 33 SOUTH MAIN STREET, COLFAX, CA 

Mayor Marnie Mendoza  Mayor Pro Tem Sean Lomen 

Councilmembers  Kim Douglass  Trinity Burruss  Joe Fatula 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

August 12, 2020 

Regular Session:  6:00PM 

The open session will be performed via TELECONFERENCE 

Join via ZOOM on a computer or mobile device by visiting 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88000089975 

Dial in by calling one of the numbers listed below and enter the Webinar ID: 880 0008 9975 

1 (669) 900-6833   1 (346) 248-7799   1 (312) 626-6799 

1 (929) 205-6099  1 (253) 215-8782   1 (301) 715-8592 

Or join via Facebook Live on our City of Colfax page: City of Colfax California 

1 CLOSED SESSION   (NO CLOSED SESSION) 

2 OPEN SESSION 

2A. Call Open Session to Order 

2B. Pledge of Allegiance 

2C. Roll Call 

2D. Approval of Agenda Order 
This is the time for changes to the agenda to be considered including removal, postponement, or change to the agenda sequence. 

Recommended Action:  By motion, accept the agenda as presented or amended. 

3 AGENCY REPORTS 

3A. Placer County Sheriff 

4 PRESENTATION   (NO PRESENTATION) 

5 PUBLIC HEARING   (NO PUBLIC HEARING) 

Notice to the Public: City Council, when considering a matter scheduled for hearing, will take the following actions: 

1. Presentation by Staff

2. Open the Public Hearing

3. Presentation, when applicable, by Applicant

4. Accept Public Testimony

5. When applicable, Applicant rebuttal period

6. Close Public Hearing (No public comment is taken, hearing is closed)

7. Council comments and questions

8. City Council Action

Public Hearings that are continued will be so noted. The continued Public Hearing will be listed on a subsequent 

council agenda and posting of that agenda will serve as notice. 

https://us02web.zoom.us/j/88000089975








6 CONSENT CALENDAR 

6A. Minutes ï Special Budget Workshop Meeting of May 20, 2020 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Special Budget Workshop Meeting of May 20, 2020 

6B. Minutes ï Regular Meeting of June 10, 2020 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 10, 2020 

6C. Minutes ï Regular Meeting of June 24, 2020 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Regular Meeting of June 24, 2020 

6D. Minutes ï Special Closed Session Meeting of June 25, 2020 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Special Closed Session Meeting of June 25, 2020 

6E. Minutes ï Special Closed Session Meeting of July 1, 2020 

Recommendation: Approve the Minutes of the Special Closed Session Meeting of June 25, 2020 

6F. Quarterly Sales Tax Analysis 

Recommendation: Accept and File. 

6G. Professional Auditing Services 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 38-2020 authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement 

with Richardson & Company, LLP to provide annual audit services for the fiscal year ending June 30, 

2020 with the option to extend the contract for each of two (2) subsequent year in an anticipated amount 

of $77,890. 

6H. Contract Award for Replacement of Two (2) Sanitary Sewer Manholes on Kneeland Street ï 

Simpson & Simpson Inc. 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 39-2020 authorizing the City Manager to execute a construction 

contract to Simpson & Simpson, Inc. in the amount of $21,658.00 and authorize the City Manager to 

execute 20% change order authority in a total amount not to exceed $25,990 for Replacement of Two (2) 

Sanitary Manholes on Kneeland Street. 

6I. Placer County Sheriffôs Substation ï Handicap Parking Space Design Acceptance 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution 40-2020 accepting the project design and authorizing the City 

Manager to solicit informal bids for the construction of the Handicap Parking Space on Culver Street in 

front of the Placer County Sheriffôs Substation. 

6J. Second Reading of Commercial Cannabis Ordinances 

Recommended Action: By motion, waive the second reading and adopt Ordinance No. 542 Amending 

Colfax Municipal Code Chapter 5.32 (Commercial Cannabis Activity) and Title 17 (Zoning ï 

Commercial Cannabis Activities). 

Councilmember Fatula requested to pull Item 6J from the Consent Calendar 

Councilmember Douglass requested to pull Item 6H from the Consent Calendar 



MOTION made by Councilmember Burruss and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Lomen to pull items 6J and 

6H from the Consent Calendar and approve the remaining items and approved by the following roll call 

vote: 

AYES: Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

ITEM 6H: 

Councilmember Douglass requested clarification and explanation on the dollar figure for the manhole 

replacement contract award. 

City Manager Heathcock provided clarification on what was included in the cost and that bids were 

solicited. 

Councilmember Douglass confirmed his questions had been answered. 

ITEM 6J: 

Councilmember Fatula directed an inquiry to City Attorney Cabral about the license description of 

businesses. 

City Attorney Cabral provided information. 

Councilmember Fatula asked Council if they were clear on the verbiage. Council acknowledged they 

understood. 

Mayor Mendoza stated she received a question from the community regarding cultivation. 

Kyle Tankard provided clarification on the cultivation requirements and answered Mayor Mendozaôs 

question. 

Councilmember Fatula requested Mayor Mendoza poll him last on the vote for Item 6J. 

MOTION made by Councilmember Burruss and seconded by Councilmember Douglass to approve Item 

6H and approved by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

MOTION made by Councilmember Burruss and seconded by Councilmember Douglass to approve Item 

6J and approved by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula  

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

6





City Council Minutes 
Special Meeting of Thursday, July 16, 2020 

City Hall Council Chambers 

33 S. Main Street, Colfax CA 

1 OPEN SESSION 

1A. Call Open Session to Order 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen called the open session to order at 10:02AM. 

1B. Pledge of Allegiance 

City Manager Heathcock led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

1C. Roll Call 

Present: Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula 

Absent: 

2 PUBLIC COMMENT 

2A. Open Public Comment 

Mayor Pro Tem Lomen opened public comment. 

No public comments received. 

Public comment was closed. 

3 COUNCIL BUSINESS 

3A. PG&E Microgrid Station Sublet Agreement and Union Pacific Railroad Consent to Sublease 

Staff Presentation: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Action: Discuss and consider adopting Resolution 41-2020 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

PG&E Microgrid Station sublet agreement and the Union Pacific Railroad Consent to Sublease for 7 

North Main Street. 

MOTION made by Mayor Mendoza, seconded by Councilmember Burruss and approved by the 

following roll call vote:  

AYES:   Mendoza, Lomen, Burruss, Douglass, Fatula  

NOES:  

ABSTAIN:  

ABSENT: 

4 ADJOURNMENT 

As there was no further business on the agenda, Mayor Pro Tem Lomen adjourned the meeting, 

without objection at 10:16AM. 

Respectfully submitted to City Council this 12th day of August, 2020. 

_______________________________________________ 

Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 







*This is a recommended General Fund Reserve Target of 25% (3 months) of annual General Fund Revenues. The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) recommends that
general purpose governments establish unrestricted fund balance goals to be no less than two months of regular general fund operating revenues or regular expenditures.

Prev Yr Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun
Cash Balance FY2019 20 $2,013 $2,069 $2,169 $2,110 $2,170 $2,467 $2,373 $2,747 $2,730 $2,615 $2,627 $2,910 $2,308
Cash Balance FY2018 19 $1,275 $1,398 $1,444 $1,447 $1,329 $1,420 $1,336 $1,672 $1,812 $1,760 $1,893 $2,151 $2,013
Cash Balance FY2017 18 $1,086 $1,050 $828 $905 $954 $983 $962 $1,280 $1,212 $1,168 $1,250 $1,493 $1,396
Cash Balance FY2016 17 $838 $829 $750 $835 $897 $802 $889 $1,133 $981 $1,022 $938 $1,034 $1,086
Cash Balance FY2015 16 $768 $670 $666 $562 $561 $601 $466 $717 $647 $569 $605 $831 $838
Cash Balance FY2014 15 $240 $181 $217 $167 $209 $284 $253 $528 $491 $489 $385 $691 $773
Cash Balance FY2013 14 $15 $(57) $(20) $45 $(55) $(34) $36 $233 $134 $69 $79 $225 $240
Cash Balance FY2012 13 $(287) $(286) $(314) $(438) $(383) $(391) $(380) $(221) $(173) $(144) $(212) $37 $15
*Reserves (Ops, Cap, Pen) $645 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695 $695
Budget FY2019 20 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013 $2,013

$(500)

$

$500

$1,000

$1,500

$2,000

$2,500

$3,000

$3,500

City of Colfax π June 2020
General Fund Reserved Cash Analysis

(Dollars in Thousands)

Fiscal Year 2019π20 >>







 

Balance 

05/31/2020
Revenues In Expenses Out Transfers

Balance 

06/30/2020

US Bank 692,215.77$          390,000.39$        (590,812.41)$       -$                      491,403.75$         

LAIF 7,114,715.45$       -$                    -$                      7,114,715.45$      

Total Cash - General Ledger 7,806,931.22$       390,000.39$        (590,812.41)$       -$                      7,606,119.20$      

Petty Cash (In Safe) 300.00$                 300.00$                

Total Cash 7,807,231.22$       390,000.39$        (590,812.41)$       -$                      7,606,419.20$      

 

Change in Cash Account Balance - Total (200,812.02)$        

 

Attached Reports:

   1.  Cash Transactions Report (By Individual Fund)  

   2.  Check Register Report (Accounts Payable) (507,848.68)$         

   3.  Cash Receipts -  Daily Cash Summary Report 208,702.17$        

Payroll Checks and Tax Deposits (72,811.15)$         

Utility Billings - Receipts 171,145.64$         

Void Check - reissued -$                    

LAIF - Quarterly Interest/Adj -$                    

(200,812.02)$       -$                       

Prepared by: Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director
Laurie Van Groningen, Finance Director

Reviewed by: Wes Heathcock, City Manager
Wes Heathcock, City Manager

 

City of Colfax 

Cash Summary

June 30, 2020

14



 Beginning 

Balance 

 Debit    

Revenues 

 Credit 

(Expenditures) 

 Ending     

Balance 
Fund Type:  1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned

Fund:  100 - General Fund 2,909,928.88$     138,312.34$        (786,466.83)$       2,261,774.39$     

Fund:  120 - Land Development Fees 92,440.11$          253.45$               (14,470.00)$         78,223.56$          

Fund:  570 - Garbage Fund (31,584.32)$         -$                     -$                     (31,584.32)$         

Fund Type:  1.11 - General Fund - Unassigned 2,970,784.67$    138,565.79$       (800,936.83)$      2,308,413.63$     

Fund Type:  1.14 - General Fund - Restricted

Fund:  200 - Cannibis Application 8,407.03$            -$                     -$                     8,407.03$            

Fund:  205 - Escrow Funds 101,633.83$        0.83$                   -$                     101,634.66$        

Fund:  571 - AB939 Landfill Diversion 26,917.26$          -$                     (1,200.00)$           25,717.26$          

Fund:  572 - Landfill Post Closure Maintenance 785,805.51$        -$                     (3,362.93)$           782,442.58$        

Fund Type:  1.14 - General Fund - Restricted 922,763.63$       0.83$                  (4,562.93)$          918,201.53$        

Fund Type:  1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricted

Fund:  210 - Mitigation Fees - Roads 406,889.10$        -$                     (191,096.86)$       215,792.24$        

Fund:  211 - Mitigation Fees - Drainage 4,350.90$            -$                     -$                     4,350.90$            

Fund:  212 - Mitigation Fees - Trails 64,342.87$          -$                     -$                     64,342.87$          

Fund:  213 - Mitigation Fees - Parks/Rec 107,450.21$        -$                     -$                     107,450.21$        

Fund:  214 - Mitigation Fees - City Bldgs 44,404.53$          -$                     -$                     44,404.53$          

Fund:  215 - Mitigation Fees - Vehicles 9,370.98$            -$                     -$                     9,370.98$            

Fund:  217 - Mitigation Fees - DT Parking 31,055.72$          -$                     -$                     31,055.72$          

Fund:  218 - Support Law Enforcement 25,000.00$          -$                     (25,000.00)$         -$                     

Fund:  244 - CDBG  Program Inc - ME Lending 2,131.61$            500.00$               -$                     2,631.61$            

Fund:  250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation (91,850.85)$         69,413.00$          (15,729.47)$         (38,167.32)$         

Fund:  253 - Gas Taxes/SB1 Road Maint 98,642.22$          8,309.11$            (68,236.20)$         38,715.13$          

Fund:  258 - Road Maintenance - SB1/RSTBG 87,179.00$          567,015.22$        (140,011.21)$       514,183.01$        

Fund:  270 - Beverage Container Recycling 18,908.86$          -$                     -$                     18,908.86$          

Fund:  280 - Oil Recycling 3,728.36$            -$                     -$                     3,728.36$            

Fund:  292 - Fire Department Capital Funds 89,945.35$          -$                     -$                     89,945.35$          

Fund:  342 - Fire Construction - Mitigation 41,260.93$          -$                     -$                     41,260.93$          

Fund:  343 - Recreation Construction 41,261.46$          -$                     -$                     41,261.46$          

Fund Type:  1.24 - Special Rev Funds - Restricte 984,071.25$       645,237.33$       (440,073.74)$      1,189,234.84$     

Fund Type:  1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted

Fund:  357 - Culver Street Phase II (28,820.39)$         31,004.77$          (2,184.38)$           -$                     

Fund:  365 - Kneeland Street Imrpov (11,816.69)$         109,006.44$        (97,189.75)$         -$                     

Fund:  367 - SB2 - Planning Grant (9,363.00)$           -$                     (864.00)$              (10,227.00)$         

Fund:  373 - S Auburn/Whitcomb Imp (6,012.27)$           6,012.27$            -$                     -$                     

Fund:  358 - CDBG Pavement - Culver (3,642.46)$           -$                     (12,098.00)$         (15,740.46)$         

Fund:  385 - Roundabout (307,847.22)$       191,096.86$        (10,000.00)$         (126,750.36)$       

Fund Type:  1.34 - Capital Projects - Restricted (367,502.03)$      337,120.34$       (122,336.13)$      (152,717.82)$       

Fund Type:  2.11 - Enterprise Funds 

Fund:  560 - Sewer 1,338,195.73$     108,530.65$        (69,591.61)$         1,377,134.77$     

Fund:  561 - Sewer Liftstations 315,675.58$        17,391.78$          (13,249.38)$         319,817.98$        

Fund:  563 - Wastewater Treatment Plant 627,075.15$        46,981.55$          (4.93)$                  674,051.77$        

Fund:  564 - Sewer Connections 282,031.40$        -$                     -$                     282,031.40$        

Fund:  567 - Inflow & Infiltration 531,230.52$        -$                     -$                     531,230.52$        

Fund:  573 - WWTP Planning Grant (100,086.96)$       -$                     (44,192.42)$         (144,279.38)$       

Fund:  574 - OES PSPS Grant 300,000.00$        -$                     -$                     300,000.00$        

Fund Type:  2.11 - Enterprise Funds - Unassign 3,294,121.42$    172,903.98$       (127,038.34)$      3,339,987.06$     

Fund Type:  9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT

Fund:  998 - PAYROLL CLEARING FUND 2,692.28$            307.68$               -$                     2,999.96$            

Fund Type:  9.0 - CLEARING ACCOUNT 2,692.28$           307.68$              -$                     2,999.96$            

Grand Totals:  7,806,931.22$     1,294,135.95$     (1,494,947.97)$    7,606,119.20$     

City of Colfax

Cash Transactions Report - June 2020

15







CITY OF COLFAX

Check Register Report

Check 
Date

Check 
Number

Status
Amount

AP Checks June 2020

BANK: 

Vendor 
Number

Vendor Name Check Description

US BANK 3Page:
10:33 amTime:

07/13/2020Date:

Void/Stop 
Date

Reconcile 
Date

US BANK Checks

1,929.15CITY WATERPCWA -PLACER COUNTY16300Printed06/30/202055942

322.49BALL PARK SECURITYSAFE SIDE SECURITY19037Printed06/30/202055943

2,049.32WWTP CHEMICALSSOLENIS19320Printed06/30/202055944

518.50PUBLIC RELATIONS CONSULTANTTHUMBLER20092Printed06/30/202055945

159.90CITY HALL INTERNETWAVE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS23169Printed06/30/202055946

353.63FIRE DEPT SIGNAGEWHITLEY & SONS CUSTOM 
SIGNS

23237Printed06/30/202055947

5,531.00WWTP IMP PLANS MAY 2020WOOD RODGERS23451Printed06/30/202055948

507,848.68Checks Total (excluding void checks):100Total Checks:

507,848.68Bank Total (excluding void checks):100Total Payments:

Grand Total (excluding void checks):Total Payments: 100 507,848.68

18





Debit Credit Net Chng

City of Colfax

Page:  2
7/13/2020
10:25 am

DAILY CASH SUMMARY REPORT

06/01/2020 - 06/30/2020
Cash Receipts - June 2020

69,311.00 0.00 69,311.0006/01/2020 Daily Totals

90.00 0.00 90.0006/08/2020 Daily Totals

12.00 0.00 12.0006/18/2020 Daily Totals

69,413.000.0069,413.00TOTALS:Fund:  250 - Streets - Roads/Transportation

Fund:  253 - Gas Taxes

3,136.68 0.00 3,136.6806/01/2020 Daily Totals

2,818.84 0.00 2,818.8406/22/2020 Daily Totals

2,353.59 0.00 2,353.5906/26/2020 Daily Totals

8,309.110.008,309.11TOTALS:Fund:  253 - Gas Taxes

Fund:  560 - Sewer

250.00 0.00 250.0006/03/2020 Daily Totals

140.50 0.00 140.5006/11/2020 Daily Totals

390.500.00390.50TOTALS:Fund:  560 - Sewer

Fund:  561 - Sewer Liftstations

407.00 0.00 407.0006/10/2020 Daily Totals

46.84 0.00 46.8406/11/2020 Daily Totals

407.00 0.00 407.0006/16/2020 Daily Totals

407.00 0.00 407.0006/26/2020 Daily Totals

1,267.840.001,267.84TOTALS:Fund:  561 - Sewer Liftstations

208,882.99 180.82 208,702.17GRAND TOTALS:

Limited to include: JE Types of: CR

20



 

City of Colfax 2020 Local Agency Biennial Notice 

Staff Report August 12, 2020 

  

Staff Report to City Council 
 

FOR THE AUGUST 12, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Subject: 2020 Local Agency Biennial Notice 
          Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:   √ Funded:   Un-funded: Amount:   Fund(s):   

 

Summary/Background 
 

The Political Reform Act of 1974 was enacted to prevent public officials from using their official positions to 

influence governmental decisions in which they have a financial interest.  The Political Reform Act requires 

every government agency to adopt a Conflict of Interest Code (the Code) and to review the code biennially on 

even numbered years.  The City of Colfax Conflict of Interest Code was adopted in 2002 by Resolution 44-2002 

as required by the Political Reform Act of 1974 (Government Code §87100 et seq.).  The Code was last 

amended in August, 2018 by Resolution 52-2018.  A biennial review was conducted by staff to ensure the 

agency’s code includes disclosure by those agency officials who make or participate in making governmental 

decisions. Staff has determined that no amendment is required. 

 

Fiscal Impacts 
 

N/A 

 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution 52-2018 Amending the City of Colfax Conflict of Interest Code 

2. 2020 Local Agency Biennial Notice 

  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Accept and file the City of Colfax 2020 Local Agency Biennial Notice. 



AMENDING THE CITY OF COLFAX CONFLICT OF INTEREST CODE 

the City of Colfax has duly adopted a Conflict of Interest Code as 
required by law on July 23, 2002, namely through Resolution 44-2002; and 

California Government Code §87306.5 requires that in each even
numbered year cities review their adopted Conflict of Interest Code and submit an 
amended Conflict of Interest Code in accordance with California Government Code 
§§87302(a) and 87303 if necessitated by changed circumstances; and

it is necessary to amend the Colfax Conflict of Interest Code to amend 
the list of individuals required to disclose economic interests and to review the disclosure 
categories to incorporate the model disclosure categories prepared by the State of 
California Fair Political Practices Commission. 

by the City Council of the City of Colfax as 
follows: 

1. The amendments to the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of Colfax attached
to this Resolution are hereby approved. 

2. The remainder of the City of Colfax Conflict of Interest Code shall be and
remain in full force and effect subject to said amendments. For purposes of convenience, 
the following paragraphs 3 through 6, inclusive, repeat the same provisions of Resolution 
44-2002 pursuant to which the City's Conflict of Interest Code was adopted on July 23,
2002.

3. The terms of the Model Conflict of Interest Code prepared by the California
Fair Political Practices Commission and set forth at Title 2, California Code of Regulations, 
Section 18730 and any amendments to that section which may be duly adopted by the Fair 
Political Practices Commission (hereafter "Section 18730") is hereby adopted by reference 
as the Conflict of Interest Code of the City of Colfax. 

4. The list of designated employees contained in Appendix "A" to this
Resolution and the list of disclosure categories contained in Appendix "B" to this Resolution 
are hereby adopted as the relevant Appendices referred to in subdivisions (b)(2) and (3) of 
section 18730. 

City of Colfax Resolution 52-2018 









1. Full Disclosure. All interests in real property in the City of Colfax, as well as
investments, business positions and sources of income, including gifts, loans and
travel payments.

2. Full Disclosure Excludini: Interests In Real Property. All investments, business
positions and sources of income, including gifts, loans and travel payments.

3. Interests in Real Property. All interests in real property in the City of Colfax.

4. Contracting. All investments, business positions and income, including gifts, loans
and travel payments, from sources that provide leased facilities, goods, equipment,
vehicles, machinery or services, including training or consulting services, of the type
used by the City of Colfax.

5. Reeulatory. Permit or Licensine. All investments, business positions and income,
including gifts, loans and travel payments, from sources that are subject to the
regulatory, permit or licensing authority of, or have an application for a license or
permit pending before the City of Colfax.



http://www.fppc.ca.gov/
mailto:advice@fppc.ca.gov








THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this � day of \ 201)__-iJy and
between the City of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of C�h ornia ("City'') and 
£)½.LJN, Uo..c,:\N? (1 f\�.ur 9• ("Consultant".) 

A The City desires to retain Consultant to provide the Services set forth in detail in Exhibit A 
hereto (the "Services") subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

B. Consultant is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perfonn the
Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in accordance with the terms and
conditions of this Agreement.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set forth in this 
Agreement, the City and Consultant agree as follows: 

Subject to the tenns and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Consultant shall furnish and 
perfonn all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference (the "Services") to the satisfaction of the City. Consultant shall not perfonn any work 
exceeding the scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior written authorization from 
the City. 

Consultant's schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which is 
incorporated herein by this reference. Consultant shall commence performance of the Services 
promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed. Performance of the Services shall 
progress and conclude in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A During the 
perfonnance of the Services, Consultant shall provide the City with written progress reports at least 
once each month and at such additional intervals as City may from time to time request. 

A Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or its 
exhibits, Consultant shall invoice City once each month for the Services perfonned during the 
preceding month. Such invoices shall itemize all charges in such detail as may reasonably be 
required by City in the usual course of City business but shall include at least (i) the date of 
performance of each of the Services, (ii) identification of the person who performed the Services, 
(iii) a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, (iv) the hourly rate at which the
Services on each date are charged, (v) an itemization of all costs incurred and (vi) the total charges
for the Services for the month invoiced. As long as the Consultant perfonns the Services to the
satisfaction of the City, the City shall pay the Consultant an all inclusive compensation that shall

Attachment 3
Item 6E





Section 6. Insurance. 

12/17 /14 aac 3 

Attachment 3
Item 6E







Section 12. Termination of Services. 

Section 13. Independent Contractor. 

Attachment 3
Item 6E









Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 
communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing 
and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows. 
Either party may change its address by notifying the other party in writing of the change of address. 
Notice shall be deemed communicated within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed 
within the State of California as provided in this Section. 

Ifto City: 

If to Consultant: 

City of Colfax 
33 S. Main Street 
Colfax, CA 95713 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and 
the same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one original 
counterpart is signed by both parties hereto. In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to 
produce or account for more than one such counterpart. 

This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the 
respective parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 

If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to 
enforce any of its terms or to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to 
recover its reasonable attorney's fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any 
such fees costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 

To promote an optimum working relationship, the 
Parties agrees in good faith not to directly or indirectly employ or otl1erwise engage any employee 
or any person employed by the other Party within the prior six month period without the prior 
written consent of the Party. This restriction shall apply during the term of and for a period of one 
(1) year after the tennination of iliis Agreement. The Parties further agrees that loss of any such
employee would involve considerable financial loss of an amount that could not be readily
established. Therefore, in the event that a Party should breach iliis provision and without limiting
any other remedy that may be available the breaching Party shall pay a sum equal to the employee's
current annual salary plus 12 additional months of the employee's current annual salary for training
of a new employee as liquidated damages.

If the performance of this Agreement or of any obligation hereunder, 
except payment of monies due, is prevented, restricted or interfered with by reason of fire, or other 
casualty or accident; inability to procure raw materials, power or supplies; hurricanes, earthquakes, 

10 

Attachment 3
Item 6E



Section 28. Beneficiaries. 

// 

�Jf?"-<-<:?7'-

Date z!rvf< 

.

'DI� 

,o/ 

Attachment 3
Item 6E









Schedule of Fees 

Page 4 of 4 

Attachment 3
Item 6E

45



 

City of Colfax Human Resources Services Consultant Agreement –  

Koff and Associates Staff Report August 12, 2020 

  

Staff Report to City Council 
 

FOR THE AUGUST 12, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Subject: Human Resource Services Consultant Agreement – Koff and Associates 
          Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded:  √ Un-funded: Amount:   Fund(s):  120, 250, 560, 561, 572 

 

Summary/Background 

 

In 2018, as a member of the Sacramento Area Council of Governments (SACOG), the City had the opportunity 

to sub-contract with firms which SACOG had vetted through the Request for Proposals (RFP) process, saving 

the City time and expenses of advertising and vetting through the RFP process. At the time, SACOG had an 

agreement with Koff and Associates for Human Resource (HR) services which provided the City with economy 

of scale savings under the auspices of the larger organization. At the June 27, 2018 City Council regular 

meeting, Council adopted Resolution 49-2018 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a service agreement 

with Koff and Associates for on-call HR services. 

 

Since signing the HR contract in 2018, SACOG has opted not to continue their contract with Koff and 

Associates, at no fault of Koff and Associates, which requires a new contract to be signed rather than an 

extension of the existing contract. Staff feels the services provided have been sufficient and meet the HR needs 

of the City. Koff and Associates have agreed to continue their services with us provided Council approves a 

new contract. 

 

HR services are included in the budget for fiscal years 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 from funds 120, 250, 560, 

561, and 572. The previous contract with Koff and Associates allowed up to $15,000 per year for a two-year 

term not to exceed $30,000. Staff confirmed the two previous years’ HR services did not exceed the budgeted 

expense and is comfortable moving forward with the no changes to the contract expense. 

 

Fiscal Impacts 

 

The approved budget for Fiscal Years 2020/2021 and 2021/2022 includes funds from 120, 250, 560, 561, and 

572. 

 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution __-2020 

2. Consultant Agreement 

  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to execute a 

contract with Koff and Associates for on-call Human Resource Services for $15,000 per year for a two-year 

term in an amount not to exceed $30,000. 

Item 6F









Employer’s Liability Insurance to cover its employees.  In the alternative, Consultant may rely 

on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as long as the program of self-

insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor Code. Consultant shall also 

require all subcontractors, if such are authorized by the City, to similarly provide Workers’ 

Compensation insurance as required by the Labor Code of the State of California for all of the 

subcontractor’s employees.  All Workers’ Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the 

provision that the insurance shall not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until thirty (30) days 

prior written notice has been provided to City by the insurer.  The Workers’ Compensation 

insurance shall also contain a provision whereby the insurance company agrees to waive all 

rights of subrogation against the City and its elected or appointed officials, officers, agents, and 

employees for losses paid under the terms of such policy which arise from the Services 

performed by the insured for the City. 

 

B. General Liability Coverage.  General liability insurance, including personal injury and property 

damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its subcontractors, if such are 

authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection with the Services.  The insurance shall be 

written on a comprehensive general liability form and include a broad form comprehensive 

general liability endorsement.  In the alternative, the City will accept, in satisfaction of these 

requirements, commercial general liability coverage which is equivalent to the comprehensive 

general liability form and a broad form comprehensive general liability endorsement.  The 

insurance shall be in an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit personal injury 

and property damage for each occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  

General liability coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable absent prior 

written authorization from the City. 

 

C. Automobile Liability Coverage.  Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury and 

property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection with this 

Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-owned vehicles, in an amount of not 

less than $1 million combined single limit for each occurrence. 

 

D. Policy Endorsements.  Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy shall be 

endorsed with the following provisions: 

 

 1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be named as 

insureds or additional insureds with regard to damages and defenses of claims arising from 

activities performed by or on behalf of the Consultant.  

 

 2. The insurance afforded by each policy shall apply separately to each insured who is 

seeking coverage or against whom a claim is made or a suit is brought, except with respect 

to the insurer’s limits of liability. 

 

 3. The insurance shall be primary insurance as respects the City and its elected or appointed 

officers, officials, employees and agents. Any other insurance maintained by the City or 

its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in 

excess of this insurance and shall not contribute with it. 

 4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in coverage or in 

Attachment 2
Item 6F



limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been provided to the City. 

 

  5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not affect 

coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, or 

agents. 

 

E. Professional Liability Coverage.  If required by the City, Consultant shall also take out and 

maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not less than $1 

million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed with a provision stating 

that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except after 

thirty (30) days written notice has been provided to the City.  

 

F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements.  Prior to commencing the Services under this 

Agreement, Consultant shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the required 

insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named.  This documentation shall 

be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include all required endorsements and 

verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This Agreement shall not be effective until the required 

insurance forms and endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  Failure to provide 

these forms within the time period specified by City may result in the award of this Agreement 

to another Consultant should the City, in its sole discretion, decide to do so.  Current certification 

of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

 

G. Deductible and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be 

declared to and approved by City. 

 

H. Termination of Insurance.  If the City receives notification that Consultant’s insurance will be 

suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced in coverage or in limits, and if the Consultant does not 

provide for either the reinstatement of that insurance or for the furnishing of alternate insurance 

containing all of the terms and provisions specified above prior to the termination of that 

insurance, City may either terminate this Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the 

required insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof from 

compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant for Services 

rendered under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

Section 7.  Subcontracts. 

 

Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written authorization of City.  

If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully responsible to the City and third parties for 

all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the Services or any portion thereof are 

subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between City and 

any subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment 

of any monies due to any such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 

 

Section 8.  Assignment. 

 

Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the City’s prior 

Attachment 2
Item 6F



written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this Agreement without 

the City’s prior written consent shall be void. 

 

Section 9.  Entire Agreement. 

 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Consultant as to those matters 

contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect 

to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing 

signed by both parties. 

 

Section 10.  Jurisdiction. 

 

This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of California.  

Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the State 

of California with venue in Placer County, California.   

 

Section 11.  Suspension of Services. 

 

Upon written request by Consultant, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the Services 

if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Consultant make normal progress of 

the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible. Upon written City approval to suspend 

performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services shall be extended by the number 

of days performance of the Services is suspended.   

 

Section 12.  Termination of Services. 

 

City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and this 

Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of notice of termination, 

Consultant shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  Consultant shall be 

entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up to the date of receipt of the 

written notice of termination. Consultant shall not be entitled to payment for any Services performed 

after the receipt of the notice of termination unless such payment is authorized in advance in writing 

by the City. 

 

Should Consultant fail to perform any of the obligations required of Consultant within the time and 

in the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should Consultant violate any of the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate this Agreement by providing Consultant 

with seven (7) days written notice of such termination.  The Consultant shall be compensated for all 

Services performed prior to the date of receipt of the notice of termination. However, the City may 

deduct from the compensation which may be owed to Consultant the amount of damage sustained or 

estimated by City resulting from Consultant’s breach of this Agreement.  

 

Consultant’s obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive termination, 

and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of Sections 5 and 6.  

 

 

Attachment 2
Item 6F











http://www.koffassociates.com/
mailto:gkrammer@koffassociates.com


mailto:gkrammer@koffassociates.com


 Human Resources Services Proposal 
City of Colfax 

 

 
2835 Seventh Street, Berkeley, California 94710 | 510.658.5633 | www.KoffAssociates.com 

   1 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

 

Qualifications of firm   2 

Key Personnel   3 

Methodology   6 

 

Fee Schedule   7 

Insurance   7 

Signature Page 

 

 

  

Exhibit A
Item 6F



https://koffassociates.com/our-clients/




  Human Resources Services Proposal 
City of Colfax 

 

 
2835 Seventh Street, Berkeley, California 94710 | 510.658.5633 | www.KoffAssociates.com 

 
 4 

Manager, and Administrative Officer, and then HR Director before entering the public sector.  With his 

wide-ranging and deep experience as a well-rounded senior HR generalist, his education in business and 

teaching, his depth and breadth of experience with public sector HR needs, programs, and functions, 

Georg’s contribution to K&A’s variety of projects greatly complements the Koff & Associates Human 

Resources and Recruitment Services team.   

He has spearheaded several hundred classification, compensation, organizational, strategic planning, etc., 

studies for hundreds of cities, towns, counties, and special districts throughout the State of California and 

has contributed to more than quadrupling the size of Koff & Associates as a result of the success of his 

projects and the subsequent expansion of the business through referrals from satisfied clients.  Georg 

joined K&A in 2003 and has been the firm’s Chief Executive Officer since 2005. 

In the last few years, Georg has been the Project Director/Key Personnel for classification and/or 

compensation studies, organizational assessments, and other HR projects, at the following agencies: 

¶ Cities/Towns:  Alameda, American Canyon, Anaheim, Arroyo Grande, Bellflower, Campbell, Citrus 
Heights, Coachella, Concord, Cotati, Gilroy, La Cañada Flintridge, Lomita, Los Altos, Los Altos Hills, 
Menifee, Menlo Park, Morro Bay, Murrieta, National City, Newport Beach, Oakland, Oxnard, Palm 
Desert, Perris, Pleasant Hill, Port Hueneme, Redlands, Redwood City, Sacramento, San Diego, San 
Jose, San Marino, Santa Ana, Santa Barbara, Santa Clara, Saratoga, Sausalito, Seal Beach, Spokane 
(Washington), Vallejo, West Sacramento, Westminster, Yucca Valley, Yreka 

¶ Counties:   Bernalillo (New Mexico), Fresno, Monterey, Orange, Placer, San Joaquin, Sonoma, and 
Trinity. 

¶ Courts:  Habeas Corpus Resource Center, Superior Court of Kern County, Superior Court of Orange 
County, Superior Court of Santa Barbara. 

¶ Education:   College of the Sequoias, Excelsior Charter Schools, First 5 Alameda, Foothill-De Anza 
Community College District, Riverside Community College District, West Valley Mission Community 
College District. 

¶ Special Districts: Air Quality, Community Services District, Fire and Police Protection, 
Housing/Economic Development, Open Space, Public Utilities, Transportation, Wastewater and 
Water. 

 

Georg will be key personnel and serve as the Project Director for this project; he will coordinate all of 

K&A’s efforts, will attend all meetings with the City, and will be responsible for all work products and 

deliverables.  

golbou ghassemieh, MBA, SPHR, SHRM-SCP, IPMA-SCP 
Project Manager 

golbou’s professional qualifications include over fourteen years of experience in the Human Resources 

field, including work as a Deputy Director and Director at County and City agencies in the public sector.  

Her experiences include working in and/or overseeing classification and compensation, training and 

development, EEO, employee and labor relations, risk management, and recruitment and examination.  

Her experience includes both public and private sector Human Resources work for the County of Sonoma, 

City of Santa Rosa, Target Corporation, and Savant Consulting.  She gained experience in classification and 

Exhibit A
Item 6F



  Human Resources Services Proposal 
City of Colfax 

 

 
2835 Seventh Street, Berkeley, California 94710 | 510.658.5633 | www.KoffAssociates.com 

 
 5 

compensation, recruitment and examination, organizational development and training programs, labor 

relations, MOU administration, policy development and administration, ADA programs, investigations, 

discipline administration, recruitment and examination, presenting to Boards and Commissions, and 

general human resources leadership and administration.  

During her ten-year tenure as a Human Resources leader in the public sector, golbou gained specialized 

knowledge of conducting classification and compensation studies for a broad array of positions in both 

agency departments as well as special districts, such as water, open space, community 

development/housing, etc.   

Since joining Koff & Associates in early 2019, golbou has worked on classification and/or compensation 

studies, organizational assessments, and other HR projects for the following agencies: 

¶ Cities/Towns:  Anaheim, East Palo Alto, Hayward, Milpitas, Paradise, Port Hueneme, 

Rohnert Park, and Sacramento 

¶ Counties:  Sonoma, Fresno 

¶ Special Districts:  Port of Oakland, East Contra Costa Fire District, Rincon del Diablo Water 

District, Metropolitan Transportation Commission 

She earned her B.A. degree in Psychology with a minor in French at University of California, Berkeley and 
her MBA degree with an emphasis in Human Resources Management from Sonoma State University.  She 
also holds several professional certifications.  Ms. ghassemieh serves as an instructor for Sonoma State 
University’s Human Resources Certification course and has served for three years as a Board member for 
PASCO-HR, a Sonoma County Professional Human Resources Association. 

golbou will provide consultant support throughout this effort, including day to day employee and labor 

relations, evaluations, performance improvement, development of recommendations, and 

implementation strategies. 

  

Exhibit A
Item 6F

63







  Human Resources Services Proposal 
City of Colfax 

 

   

Proposal Signature Page 
 

Koff & Associates intends to adhere to all of the provisions described above. 
 
This proposal is valid at least for 90 days.   
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
By: KOFF & ASSOCIATES 
 State of California 

 
 
 

  

 
Georg S. Krammer         July 24, 2020 

Chief Executive Officer       
 

 

Exhibit A
Item 6F





  

City of Colfax Contract Award for Kneeland Street Pavement Rehabilitation 

Project– Simpson & Simpson Inc. and Budget Amendment Staff Report August 12, 2020 

  

   
 

The Engineering/Design category includes $8,600.00 for Giuliani & Kuhl for preliminary design work for 

Kneeland Street which was previously approved and expended and $31,400 for GHD Inc. for final engineering 

design and project management.  The $86,325.00 for Underground Construction was previously approved by 

the City Council and included all the underground construction associated with the final project.  This work was 

completed by Koslin Construction.  The $162,618.00 for Roadway Construction is for the Simpson & Simpson 

contract which is the subject of this Council Report, as is the 15% Contingency of $24,392.70. The $21,400 is 

for Construction Management and Inspection by the firm Unico Engineering and is the subject of a separate 

City Council Report on tonight’s Agenda.  Total estimated project cost is $ $336,556. 

 

Funding for Road Maintenance Projects/Pavement Management plan includes the annual SB1 Road and 

Rehabilitation revenues and a General Fund FY2019-2020 Budget allocation of $500,000.  The total 

expenditures for the Culver Street Ph. 2 project is estimated at $251,529 and the total project expenditures for 

the Kneeland Street Pavement Rehabilitation project is estimated at $336,556, therefore, the combined projects 

are over the current estimated funding by the amount of $18,485.  Staff is recommending a General Fund 

transfer of $20,000 to the Road Maintenance Fund to cover the contingent expenses. 
 

 
 

Staff is recommending Council authorize the City Manager to award a construction contract to Simpson & 

Simpson, Inc.based on their cost proposal and authorize the City Manager to execute change orders up to the 

total budgeted amount for the project.  Staff is also recommending a General Fund transfer in the amount of 

$20,000 to the Road Maintenance Project Fund. 

 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution __-2020 

2. Contract 

Item 6G



_________________________________________________________________________________________  
City of Colfax Contract Award for Kneeland Street Pavement Rehabilitation 

Project– Simpson & Simpson Inc. and Budget Amendment Resolution __-2020 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution № __ - 2020 
 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO: 

1. AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO SIMPSON & SIMPSON, INC. IN THE AMOUNT 

OF $162,618.00 AND AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 15% CHANGE 

ORDER IN A TOTAL AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $187,010.70 FOR THE KNEELAND STREET 

PAVEMENT REHABILITATION PROJECT.  

2. APPROVE A GENERAL FUND TRANSFER TO THE ROAD MAINTENANCE FUND IN THE 

AMOUNT OF $20,000. 

 

WHEREAS, the City released bidding on June 26, 2020 with the project being advertised through the 

Auburn Journal, the City’s website, and CIPList.com website; and, 

 

WHEREAS, on June 30, 2020 the City received five (5) bids where Simpson and Simpson, Inc. was 

determined to be the lowest responsible and responsive bidder in the amount of $162,618.00; and, 

 

WHEREAS, staff is recommending Council authorize the City Manager to award a construction 

contract to Simpson & Simpson, Inc. based on their cost proposal and authorize the City Manager to execute 

change orders up to the total budgeted amount for the project; and 

 

WHEREAS, staff is recommending a budget amendment in the amount of $20,000. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax authorizes the City 

Manager authorizing the City Manager to:  

1. Award a construction contract to Simpson & Simpson, Inc.in the amount of $162,618.00 and 

authorize the City Manager to execute 15% change order in a total amount not to exceed $187,010.70 for the 

Kneeland Street Pavement Rehabilitation Project.  

2. Approve a General Fund Transfer to the Road Maintenance Fund in the amount of $20,000.  

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting 

of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th of August 2020 by the following vote of the Council: 

 

AYES:   

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT:   

________________________________________ 

     Marnie Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

     Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

 

Item 6G



AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 13th day of August, 2020 by and between the 

City of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California (ñCityò) and Simpson & Simpson, 

Inc. (ñContractorò.) 

RECITALS 

A. The City desires to retain Contractor to provide the Services set forth in detail in Exhibit A

hereto (the ñServicesò) subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

B. Contractor is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform the

Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in accordance with the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement, the City and Contractor agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Services. 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Contractor shall furnish and perform 

all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 

(the ñServicesò) to the satisfaction of the City.  Contractor shall not perform any work exceeding the 

scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior written authorization from the City. 

Section 2.  Time of Completion. 

Contractorôs schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which is 

incorporated herein by this reference.  Contractor shall commence performance of the Services 

promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed. Performance of the Services shall 

progress and conclude in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A.  During the performance 

of the Services, Contractor shall provide the City with written progress reports at least once each 

month and at such additional intervals as City may from time to time request.  

Section 3.  Compensation. 

A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or its

exhibits, Contractor shall invoice City once each month for the Services performed during the

preceding month. Such invoices shall itemize all charges in such detail as may reasonably be

required by City in the usual course of City business but shall include at least (i) the date of

performance of each of the Services, (ii) identification of the person who performed the Services,

(iii) a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, (iv) the hourly rate at which the

Services on each date are charged, (v) an itemization of all costs incurred and (vi) the total charges

for the Services for the month invoiced. As long as the Contractor performs the Services to the

satisfaction of the City, the City shall pay the Contractor an all inclusive compensation that shall

not exceed the amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change

Item 6G



order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring additional 

compensation are performed. City shall pay Contractor no later than thirty (30) days after approval 

of the monthly invoice by Cityôs staff. 

 

B. The Contractor's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all indirect 

and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred by the Contractor and 

used in carrying out or completing the Services. Payments shall be in accordance with the 

payment schedule established in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits.   

  

C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating charges 

billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right to perform an audit 

of the Contractor's relevant records pertaining to the charges.    

 

D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they are 

invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  

 

Section 4.  Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 

 

City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Contractor to perform the Services 

described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall 

therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to perform all Services under 

this Agreement.  All Services performed by Contractor under this Agreement shall be in a skillful, 

workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable legal requirements and shall meet the standard of 

quality ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in Contractorôs field of expertise. 

 

Section 5.  Indemnification. 

 

Contractor shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to defend, the 

City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, 

costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful 

misconduct of Contractor and/or its agents in the performance of the Services. This indemnity does 

not apply to liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other 

loss, arising from the sole negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or 

its agents, servants employees or independent contractors other than Contractor who are directly 

responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, employees 

or volunteers 

 

Section 6.  Insurance. 

 

Without limiting Contractorôs indemnification obligations provided for above, Contractor shall take 

out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times during the life of this 

Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers possessing a Best rating of not less than 

A.  Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor, professional or otherwise, to commence work on 

any subcontract until all insurance required of the Contractor has also been obtained by the 

subcontractor. 

 

Item 6G

71





 

 4. The insurance shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in coverage or in 

limits except after thirty (30) days prior written notice has been provided to the City. 

 

  5. Any failure to comply with the reporting requirements of any policy shall not affect 

coverage provided to the City, its elected or appointed officers, officials, employees, or 

agents. 

 

E. Professional Liability Coverage.  If required by the City, Contractor shall also take out and 

maintain professional liability, errors and omissions insurance in an amount not less than $1 

million.  The professional liability insurance policy shall be endorsed with a provision stating 

that it shall not be suspended, voided, cancelled, or reduced in coverage or in limits except after 

thirty (30) days written notice has been provided to the City.  

 

F. Insurance Certificates and Endorsements.  Prior to commencing the Services under this 

Agreement, Contractor shall submit to the City documentation evidencing the required 

insurance signed by the insurance agent and the companies named.  This documentation shall 

be on forms which are acceptable to the City and shall include all required endorsements and 

verify that coverage is actually in effect.  This Agreement shall not be effective until the required 

insurance forms and endorsements are submitted to and approved by the City.  Failure to provide 

these forms within the time period specified by City may result in the award of this Agreement 

to another Contractor should the City, in its sole discretion, decide to do so.  Current certification 

of insurance shall be kept on file with the City at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

 

G. Deductible and Self-Insured Retentions.  Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be 

declared to and approved by City. 

 

H. Termination of Insurance.  If the City receives notification that Contractorôs insurance will be 

suspended, voided, cancelled or reduced in coverage or in limits, and if the Contractor does not 

provide for either the reinstatement of that insurance or for the furnishing of alternate insurance 

containing all of the terms and provisions specified above prior to the termination of that 

insurance, City may either terminate this Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the 

required insurance to satisfy the conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof from 

compensation which would otherwise be due and payable to the Contractor for Services 

rendered under the terms of this Agreement. 

 

Section 7.  Subcontracts. 

 

Contractor may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written authorization of City.  

If City consents to a subcontract, Contractor shall be fully responsible to the City and third parties for 

all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the Services or any portion thereof are 

subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create any contractual relationship between City and 

any subcontractor, nor shall it create any obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment 

of any monies due to any such subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 

 

 

Item 6G





and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of Sections 5 and 6.  

 

Section 13.  Independent Contractor. 

 

Contractor shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee of City.  

Contractor has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of the means and 

methods of performing the Services.  Contractor shall receive no premium or enhanced pay for 

Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Contractor receive holiday pay, sick leave, 

administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually expended in the performance of the 

Services.  It is intended by the parties that Contractor shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive 

no compensation from the City, except as expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Contractor shall 

submit completed W-9 and Report of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this 

Agreement and prior to the payment of any compensation hereunder. 

 

Section 14.  Ownership of Documents. 

 

Within thirty (30) days after the Contractor substantially completes performance of the Services, 

or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Contractor shall deliver to 

the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by Contractor's in the 

performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that all such files, records, 

materials and documents are the property of the City and not the property of the Contractor. All 

finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents and other writings prepared by and for 

Contractor, its officers, employees and agents in the course of performing the Services shall become 

the sole property of the City upon payment to Contractor for the Services, and the City shall have the 

exclusive right to use such materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Contractor 

or to any other party.  Contractor shall, at Contractorôs expense, provide such reports, plans, studies, 

documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written request.  Contractor 

may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any such documents by the City for 

projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for purposes beyond the scope of the Services 

shall be at the Cityôs sole risk without legal liability or expense to Contractor. 

 

Section 15.  Changes and/or Extra Work. 

 

Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the time of 

completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be performed by Contractor. 

Contractor expressly recognizes that other City personnel are without authorization to order extra 

and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the payment of additional compensation.  The 

failure of Contractor to secure the prior written authorization for such extra and/or changed Services 

shall constitute a waiver of any and all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such 

unauthorized Services, and Contractor thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever 

for the performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Contractor and City agree that 

extra and/or changed Services are required, or that additional compensation shall be awarded to 

Contractor for performance of the Services under this Agreement, a supplemental agreement 

providing for such compensation shall be prepared and shall be executed by the Contractor and the 

necessary City officials before the extra and/or changed Services are provided. 

 

Item 6G







If to Contractor:   Simpson & Simpson, Inc 

     P.O. Box 6746  

     Newcastle, CA 95604 

 

Section 23.  Execution. 

 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the 

same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one original counterpart is 

signed by both parties hereto.  In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or 

account for more than one such counterpart. 

 

Section 24. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective 

parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 

 

Section 25. Attorneyôs Fees.  If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce 

any of its terms or to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 

its reasonable attorneyôs fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such fees 

costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first above 

written: 

 

 

CITY       CONTRACTOR 

 

Signature     Signature    

 

Printed Name     Printed Name    

 

Title       Title     

 

Date       Date     

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

       

City Attorney 

Item 6G



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF WORK 

The work in general consists of removal of existing roadway section and replacing with asphalt 

concrete and aggregate base, asphalt concrete dike, concrete curb, gutter and sidewalk, curb ramps, 

storm drain construction and modification, and resetting existing utilities to grade in compliance with 

the engineered plans. 

Cost to perform the scope of work is not to exceed $162,618 without prior approval from the City of 

Colfax.   

Item 6G

79



  

City of Colfax Construction Management and Inspection Services for 

Kneeland Street Pavement Rehabilitation Project – Unico 

Engineering 

Staff Report August 12, 2020 

 

Staff Report to City Council 
 

 

FOR THE AUGUST 12, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Larry Wing, City Engineer 

Subject: Construction Management and Inspection Services for Kneeland Street 

Pavement Rehabilitation Project- Unico Engineering 
          Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded: √   Un-funded: Amount: $21,400.00   Fund(s):  365 

 

Summary/Background 
 

City of Colfax’s adopted budget for Fiscal Years 2019-2020 includes for the design and construction of  various 

pavement rehabilitation projects in the community. Kneeland Street Pavement Rehabilitation Project (“The 

Project”) is one of the projects council authorized for construction in the current fiscal year. 

On May 27, 2020 the City Council approved the plans and specifications and authorized the Project for 

competitive bids.  The project was publicly bid on June 26, 2020, and bids received on July 30, 2020. 

Because the City does not have adequate personnel to complete the construction management services required 

of the project, the use of a construction management consultant is required.  The City’s contract City Engineer 

consultant has these capabilities through their subconsultant Unico Engineering.  Unico Engineering provided a 

scope, schedule, and fee estimate to provide construction inspection and testing services for the Project. 

Construction management services are generally 10-15% of the construction costs.  Staff has reviewed Unico’s 

proposal and fee and finds them acceptable for the construction inspection and testing scope of work and their 

proposed fee is within the construction management cost range at 13%. 

Staff recommends that the City Council authorize the City Manager to execute a consultant services agreement 

with Unico Engineering for construction management and inspection services for the Kneeland Street Pavement 

Rehabilitation Project in the amount of $21,400. 

Fiscal Impacts 

The total project is funded Road Maintenance/Pavement Management Plan Funds. The proposed agreement 

with Unico Engineering is in an amount no to exceed $21,400.  

Attachments 

1. Resolution __-2020 

2. Agreement 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION:   Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to enter into a 

consultant services agreement with Unico Engineering for construction management and inspection services 

on the Kneeland Street Pavement Rehabilitation Project in an amount not to exceed $21,400. 

Item 6H







change order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services 
requiring additional compensation are performed. City shall pay Consultant no 
later than thirty (30) days after approval of the monthly invoice by City's staff. 

B. The Consultant's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all
indirect and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred
by the Consultant and used in carrying out or completing the Services.  Payments
shall be in accordance with the payment schedule established in Exhibit A or
elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits.

C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation
substantiating charges billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall
have the right to perform an audit of the Consultant's relevant records pertaining
to the charges.

D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which
they are invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.

Section 4. Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 

City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Consultant to perform the 
Services described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Consultant shall therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel 
to perform all Services under this Agreement.  All Services performed by Consultant under 
this Agreement shall be in a skillful, workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable 
legal requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of 
competent professionals in Consultant's field of expertise. 

Section 5. Indemnification. 

Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to 
defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the 
negligence, recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or its agents in the 
performance of the Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for 
death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from the sole 
negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or its agents, 
servants employees or independent contractors other than Consultant who are directly 
responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, 
employees or volunteers  

Section 6. Insurance. 

Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times 
during the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers 
possessing a Best rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, 
professional or otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance 
required of the Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  

A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance

Item 6H

83









Section 13. Independent Contractor. 

Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee 
of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of 
the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall receive no premium 
or enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Consultant 
receive holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually 
expended in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the parties that Consultant 
shall not be eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the City, except 
as expressly set forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit completed W -9 and 
Report of Independent Contractor forms upon execution of this Agreement and prior to 
the payment of any compensation hereunder.  

Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 

Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by 
Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed 
that all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the City and not 
the property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, 
documents and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, employees and 
agents in the course of performing the Services shall become the sole property of the City 
upon payment to Consultant for the Services, and the City shall have the exclusive right to 
use such materials in its sole discretion without further compensation to Consultant or to 
any other party.  Consultant shall, at Consultant's expense, provide such reports, plans, 
studies, documents and writings to City or any party the City may designate, upon written 
request.  Consultant may keep file copies of all documents prepared for City.  Use of any 
such documents by the City for projects that are not the subject of this Agreement or for 
purposes beyond the scope of the Services shall be at the City's sole risk without legal 
liability or expense to Consultant.  

Section 15. Changes and/or Extra Work. 

Only the City Council may authorize extra and/or changed Services, modification of the 
time of completion of the Services, or additional compensation for the tasks to be 
performed by Consultant.  Consultant expressly recognizes that other City personnel are 
without authorization to order extra and/or changed Services or to obligate the City to the 
payment of additional compensation.  The failure of Consultant to secure the prior written 
authorization for such extra and/or changed Services shall constitute a waiver of any and 
all right to adjustment in the contract price due to such unauthorized Services, and 
Consultant thereafter shall not be entitled to any compensation whatsoever for the 
performance of such extra or changed Services.  In the event Consultant and City agree 
that extra and/or changed Services are required, or that additional compensation shall be 
awarded to Consultant for performance of the Services under this Agreement, a 
supplemental agreement providing for such compensation shall be prepared and shall be 
executed by the Consultant and the necessary City officials before the extra and/or 
changed Services are provided. 

Item 6H



















_________________________________________________________________________________________  
City of Colfax Consultant Services Agreement with GHD Inc. for Geotechnical 

Engineering Observation and Construction Testing Services for 

the Pond 3 Fissure Repair 

 

Resolution __-2020 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution ̄  __-2020 
 

AUTHORIZE THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A CONSULTANT SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 

GHD INC. FOR GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEERING OBSERVATION AND CONSTRUCTION TESTING 

SERVICES FOR THE POND 3 FISSURE REPAIR FOR A NOT TO EXCEED AMOUNT OF $28,500 
 

WHEREAS, in 2012, the City completed the Pond 3 wastewater pond at the wastewater treatment plant 

and, 
 

WHEREAS, in January 2017 City staff observed that a portion of the southwesterly bank of Pond 3 had 

subsided and appeared to be failing, and, 
 

WHEREAS, the City retained the Geotechnical Engineering firm Holdrege & Kull who prepared a 

Geotechnical Evaluation of Slope Repair which determined that the failure was relatively shallow and possible 

repairs could include Soil Nails or Steel Plates, and, 
 

WHEREAS, due to internal issues within Holdrege & Kull, another Geotechnical firm was retained to 

finish the project repair assessment, and their findings matched the findings of Holdrege & Kull, and, 
 

WHEREAS, in June 2019 the City advertised a Request for Proposals (RFP) for collaborative design-

build services for the stabilization/repair of the Pond 3 embankment.  Three bids were received with the City 

Council approving the Construction Contract on October 23, 2019 but construction was delayed to 2020 

because of the late fall weather conditions, and, 
 

WHEREAS, it is necessary to perform certain geotechnical inspections of the construction.  The City 

has received a proposal from GHD Inc. to accomplish the required construction inspection services which the 

proposal has been found to be adequate and the fee reasonable for the services provided 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax, authorizes the City 

Manager to execute a Consultant Services Agreement with GHD Inc. for Geotechnical Engineering Observation 

and Construction Testing Services for the Pond 3 Fissure Repair for a not to exceed fee of $28,500.00. 
 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular Meeting 

of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th day of August 2020 by the following vote of the 

Council: 
 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

________________________________________ 

     Marnie Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

________________________________________ 

     Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

Item 6I

96





iii. a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, 
iv. the hourly rate at which the Services on each date are charged, 
v. an itemization of all costs incurred and 

vi. the total charges for the Services for the month invoiced.  
As long as the Consultant performs the Services to the satisfaction of the City, the City 
shall pay the Consultant an all-inclusive compensation that shall not exceed the 
amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change 
order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring 
additional compensation are performed. City shall pay Consultant no later than thirty 
(30) days after approval of the monthly invoice by City's staff. 

 
B. The Consultant's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all 

indirect and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred 
by the Consultant and used in carrying out or completing the Services.  Payments shall 
be in accordance with the payment schedule established in Exhibit A or elsewhere in 
this Agreement or its exhibits. 

 
C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating 

charges billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right to 
perform an audit of the Consultant's relevant records pertaining to the charges. 

 
D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they 

are invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  
 
Section 4. Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 
 
City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Consultant to perform the 
Services described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement. 
Consultant shall therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to 
perform all Services under this Agreement.  All Services performed by Consultant under this 
Agreement shall be in a skillful, workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements and shall meet the standard of quality ordinarily to be expected of competent 
professionals in Consultant's field of expertise. 
 
Section 5. Indemnification. 
 
Consultant shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to 
defend, the City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, 
demands, damages, costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, 
recklessness or willful misconduct of Consultant and/or its agents in the performance of the 
Services. This indemnity does not apply to liability for damages for death or bodily injury to 
persons, injury to property, or other loss, arising from the sole negligence, willful misconduct 
or material defects in design by the City or its agents, servants employees or independent 
contractors other than Consultant who are directly responsible to the City, or arising from 
the active negligence of the City officers, agents, employees or volunteers. 
 

Item 6I

98



Section 6. Insurance.  
 
Without limiting Consultant's indemnification obligations provided for above, Consultant 
shall take out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times during 
the life of this Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers possessing a Best 
rating of not less than A.  Consultant shall not allow any subcontractor, professional or 
otherwise, to commence work on any subcontract until all insurance required of the 
Consultant has also been obtained by the subcontractor.  
 
A. Workers' Compensation Coverage. Statutory Workers' Compensation insurance and 

Employer's Liability Insurance to cover its employees. In the alternative, Consultant 
may rely on a self-insurance program to meet its legal requirements as long as the 
program of self-insurance complies fully with the provisions of the California Labor 
Code.  Consultant shall also require all subcontractors, if such are authorized by the 
City, to similarly provide Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the Labor 
Code of the State of California for all of the subcontractor's employees.  All Workers' 
Compensation policies shall be endorsed with the provision that the insurance shall 
not be suspended, voided, or cancelled until thirty (30) days prior written notice has 
been provided to City by the insurer.  The Workers' Compensation insurance shall 
also contain a provision whereby the insurance company agrees to waive all rights of 
subrogation against the City and its elected or appointed officials, officers, agents, and 
employees for losses paid under the terms of such policy which arise from the 
Services performed by the insured for the City. 

 
B. General Liability Coverage. General liability insurance, including personal injury and 

property damage insurance for all activities of the Consultant and its subcontractors, 
if such are authorized by the City, arising out of or in connection with the Services.  
The insurance shall be written on a comprehensive general liability form and include 
a broad form comprehensive general liability endorsement.  In the alternative, the 
City will accept, in satisfaction of these requirements, commercial general liability 
coverage which is equivalent to the comprehensive general liability form and a broad 
form comprehensive general liability endorsement.  The insurance shall be in an 
amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit personal injury and property 
damage for each occurrence.  The insurance shall be occurrence based insurance.  
General liability coverage written on a claims made basis shall not be acceptable 
absent prior written authorization from the City.  

 
C. Automobile Liability Coverage. Automobile liability insurance covering bodily injury 

and property damage for all activities of the Consultant arising out of or in connection 
with this Agreement, including coverage for owned, hired and non-owned vehicles, in 
an amount of not less than $1 million combined single limit for each occurrence.  

 
D. Policy Endorsements. Each general liability and automobile liability insurance policy 

shall be endorsed with the following provisions:  
 

1. The City, and its elected or appointed officials, employees and agents shall be 

Item 6I

99





furnishing of alternate insurance containing all of the terms and provisions specified 
above prior to the termination of that insurance, City may either terminate this 
Agreement for that breach, or City may secure the required insurance to satisfy the 
conditions of this Agreement and deduct the cost thereof from compensation which 
would otherwise be due and payable to the Consultant for Services rendered under 
the terms of this Agreement. 

 
Section 7. Subcontracts.  
 
Consultant may not subcontract any portion of the Services without the written 
authorization of City.  If City consents to a subcontract, Consultant shall be fully responsible 
to the City and third parties for all acts or omissions of the subcontractor to which the 
Services or any portion thereof are subcontracted.  Nothing in this Agreement shall create 
any contractual relationship between City and any subcontractor, nor shall it create any 
obligation on the part of the City to pay or cause the payment of any monies due to any such 
subcontractor except as otherwise is required by law. 
 
Section 8. Assignment.  
 
Consultant shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the City's 
prior written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this 
Agreement without the City's prior written consent shall be void.  
 
Section 9. Entire Agreement. 
 
This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Consultant as to those 
matters contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or 
effect with respect to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified or 
altered except in writing signed by both parties.  
 
Section 10. Jurisdiction. 
 
This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of 
California.  Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the 
Superior Court of the State of California with venue in Placer County, California.  
 
Section 11. Suspension of Services. 
 
Upon written request by Consultant, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the 
Services if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Consultant make 
normal progress of the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible.  Upon written City 
approval to suspend performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services 
shall be extended by the number of days performance of the Services is suspended.  
 
 
 

Item 6I

101



Section 12. Termination of Services. 
 
City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and 
this Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Consultant.  Upon receipt of notice of 
termination, Consultant shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  
Consultant shall be entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up to 
the date of receipt of the written notice of termination.  Consultant shall not be entitled to 
payment for any Services performed after the receipt of the notice of termination unless such 
payment is authorized in advance in writing by the City. 
 
Should Consultant fail to perform any of the obligations required of Consultant within the 
time and in the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should Consultant 
violate any of the terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate this Agreement 
by providing Consultant with seven (7) days written notice of such termination.  The 
Consultant shall be compensated for all Services performed prior to the date of receipt of the 
notice of termination.  However, the City may deduct from the compensation which may be 
owed to Consultant the amount of damage sustained or estimated by City resulting from 
Consultant's breach of this Agreement. 
 
Consultant's obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive 
termination, and continue in effect for as long as necessary to fulfill the purposes of Sections 
5 and 6. 
 
Section 13. Independent Contractor. 
 
Consultant shall in all respects be an independent contractor and not an agent or employee 
of City.  Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision of 
the means and methods of performing the Services.  Consultant shall receive no premium or 
enhanced pay for Services normally understood as overtime; nor shall Consultant receive 
holiday pay, sick leave, administrative leave or pay for any other time not actually expended 
in the performance of the Services.  It is intended by the parties that Consultant shall not be 
eligible for benefits and shall receive no compensation from the City, except as expressly set 
forth in this Agreement.  Consultant shall submit completed W -9 and Report of Independent 
Contractor forms upon execution of this Agreement and prior to the payment of any 
compensation hereunder.  
 
Section 14. Ownership of Documents. 
 
Within thirty (30) days after the Consultant substantially completes performance of the 
Services, or within thirty (30) days after the termination of this Agreement, the Consultant 
shall deliver to the City all files, records, materials and documents drafted or prepared by 
Consultant's in the performance of the Services.  It is expressly understood and agreed that 
all such files, records, materials and documents are the property of the City and not the 
property of the Consultant.  All finished and unfinished reports, plans, studies, documents 
and other writings prepared by and for Consultant, its officers, employees and agents in the 
course of performing the Services shall become the sole property of the City upon payment 

Item 6I





arising from or relating to this Agreement subject to the following provisions.  Any 
party desiring to meet and confer shall so advise the other party pursuant to a written 
notice.  Within 15 days after provision of that written notice by the party desiring to 
meet and confer, the primary contacts for each party shall meet in person and attempt 
to amicably resolve their dispute.  Each primary contact, or the person acting in their 
absence with full authority to resolve the dispute, shall attend the meeting and shall 
be prepared to devote an entire day thereto.  If any dispute remains unresolved at the 
end of the meeting, any party to this Agreement shall have the right to invoke the 
mediation process provided for in the subparagraph B below.  

 
B. Subject to the provisions of subparagraph A, any dispute that remains unresolved 

after the meet and confer shall immediately be submitted to non-binding neutral 
mediation, before a mutually acceptable, neutral retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento Office of the Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Service ("JAMS").  If 
within five days after the meet and confer the parties are unable to agree upon the 
selection of a neutral mediator, then the first available retired judge or justice at the 
Sacramento office of JAMS shall serve as the neutral mediator.  The parties agree to 
commit to at least one full day to the mediation process.  Additionally, to expedite the 
resolution of any dispute that is not resolved by mediation, the parties agree to each 
bring to the neutral mediation a list of at least five neutral arbitrators, including their 
resumes, whose availability for an arbitration hearing within 30 days after the 
mediation has been confirmed.  

 
C. If mediation is unsuccessful, before the mediation concludes, the parties shall mediate 

the selection of a neutral arbitrator to assist in the resolution of their dispute.  If the 
parties are unable to agree on an arbitrator, the parties agree to submit selection of 
an arbitrator to the mediator, whose decision shall be binding on the parties.  In that 
case, the mediator shall select a neutral arbitrator from the then active list of retired 
judges or justices at the Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The arbitration shall be 
conducted pursuant to the provisions of the California Arbitration Act, sections 1280-
1294.2 of the California Code of Civil Procedure. In such case, the provisions of Code 
of Civil Procedure Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 shall apply and are hereby 
incorporated into this Agreement. 

 
D. This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement.  If there 

is no Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall be 
used instead of a Sacramento office. 
 

Section 19. Severability. 
 
The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held 
invalid by an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the 
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual 
written consent of the parties.  
 
 

Item 6I

104







GHD 

4080 Plaza Goldorado Circle Suite B Cameron Park California 95682 USA 
T 530 677 5515 W www.ghd.com 

July 21, 2020 

Mr. Wes Heathcock, City Manager 
City of Colfax 
33 South Main Street 
Colfax, CA 957131 

Dear Mr. Heathcock, 

Re: Proposal for Geotechnical Engineering Observation and Construction Testing Services 

Based on the Consultant Services Agreement with the City of Colfax, GHD is pleased to submit this cost 

proposal to perform geotechnical engineering observation and construction testing services for the Pond 3 

Embankment Repair project at the City of Colfax Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) in Colfax, 

California.   

Construction of the project is expected to begin August 2020. Observation and testing services will be 

performed during the installation of plate piles for stabilizing the distressed embankment slope at Pond 3. 

The duration of the project is expected to exist approximately six weeks. During construction operations 

GHD will conduct periodic observation and testing during installation of the pile structures, material 

sampling and testing during grout placement and testing during grading operations. Based on our 

understanding of the project the scope of our services will consist of: 

¶ Reviewing submitted design-build construction plans and specifications

¶ Observation of the pre-drilled pilot holes verifying minimum embedment depths and ensure
competency of the subsurface material

¶ Observation during plate pile installation, verifying and recording embedment depth, pile spacing
and general plumbness

¶ During grout backfilling, observe material placement, complete field sampling and conduct
compressive strength testing on collected samples to verify required strength.

¶ Observe earthwork grading operation and perform soil compaction testing on proposed fill
placement and aggregate base (AB) material.

¶ Provide a final report summarizing construction activities and installation of the proposed
improvements and affirming project is completed in conformance with approved design-build
submittal.

The services provided in our scope is on a time-and-material basis for an estimated fee not to exceed 

$28,500.  In the event unforeseen conditions are encountered or if delays or circumstances beyond our 

control, we will notify you immediately to provide adjustments to the scope of services and/or project fees. 

http://www.ghd.com/




  

City of Colfax Contract Award with Simpson and Simpson, Inc. for the 

McLaughlin Storm Drain Easement Improvements Staff Report August 12, 2020 

  

     

Staff Report to City Council 
 

FOR THE AUGUST 12, 2020 REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
 

From: Wes Heathcock, City Manager 

Prepared by: Larry Wing, City Engineer 

Subject: Contract Award with Simpson and Simpson, Inc. for the McLaughlin Storm 

Drain Easement Improvements 
          Budget Impact Overview: 

N/A:    Funded:  √ Un-funded: Amount: $28,543.20 Fund(s): 250 

 

Summary/Background 

 

In November 2003, Parcel Map Book 31, Page 104 was recorded which split property owned by John 

McLaughlin into two properties, one of them with access from Depot Street and the other with access from 

Grass Valley St. through a private access easement.  On this Parcel Map, Mr. McLaughlin offered for 

dedication a Storm Drain Easement.  In the acceptance statement from the Mayor at the time, the words “for 

Recording Only” were written in as part of the statement.  This created a cloud on the easement wherein it is not 

certain that the Easement is valid. 

 

To correct this issue, the City has been working with Mr. McLaughlin to create a process wherein the Storm 

Drain Easement can be perfected and accepted by the City.  As part of the process, the City staff has agreed to 

accomplish two items.  First, there is approximately 20-lineal feet of existing storm drain pipe on Mr. 

McLaughlin’s that needs to be replaced as the pipeline ties into the storm drain system built by the adjacent 

Shadow Wood Subdivision.  Second, in City right-of-way of Depot Street adjacent to Mr. McLaughlin’s 

property, there is approximately 30-lineal feet of an existing retaining wall built from railroad ties that is failing. 

The City is proposing to replace this failing retaining wall with a more permanent Keystone Block retaining 

wall. 

 

Simpson & Simpson, Inc. provided their Cost Proposal on July 30th in the amount of $23,768.00.  Staff has 

reviewed the Cost Proposal and finds the cost reasonable for the type and extent of work being proposed.  

Therefore, staff is recommending Council authorize the City Manager to award a construction contract to 

Simpson & Simpson, Inc. based on their cost proposal and authorize the City Manager to execute change orders 

up to the total budgeted amount for the project. 

 

After the improvements have been satisfactorily constructed and accepted, staff will bring a Staff Report to the 

City Council for the Council to formally accept the Storm Drain Easement.  

 
Attachments: 

1. Resolution __-2020 

2. Contract  

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Adopt Resolution __-2020 authorizing the City Manager to award a 

construction contract to Simpson & Simpson, Inc.in the amount of $23,786.00 and authorize the City Manager 

to execute 20% change order in a total amount not to exceed $28,543.20 for the Construction of approximately 

Twenty (20) Lineal Feet of Storm Drain Pipe on John McLaughlin Property and approximately Thirty (30) 

Lineal Feet of Keystone Block Retaining Wall in the right-of-way of Depot Street. 

Item 6J

109





AGREEMENT FOR CONTRACT SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on this 13th day of August, 2020 by and between the 

City of Colfax, a municipal corporation of the State of California (ñCityò) and Simpson & Simpson, 

Inc. (ñContractorò.) 

RECITALS 

A. The City desires to retain Contractor to provide the Services set forth in detail in Exhibit A

hereto (the ñServicesò) subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

B. Contractor is duly licensed and sufficiently experienced to undertake and perform the

Services in a skilled and workmanlike manner and desires to do so in accordance with the terms and

conditions of this Agreement.

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and conditions set forth in this 

Agreement, the City and Contractor agree as follows: 

Section 1.  Services. 

Subject to the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, Contractor shall furnish and perform 

all of the Services described in detail in Exhibit A hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 

(the ñServicesò) to the satisfaction of the City.  Contractor shall not perform any work exceeding the 

scope of the Services described in Exhibit A without prior written authorization from the City. 

Section 2.  Time of Completion. 

Contractorôs schedule for performance of the Services is set forth in Exhibit A hereto which is 

incorporated herein by this reference.  Contractor shall commence performance of the Services 

promptly upon receipt of written notice from the City to proceed. Performance of the Services shall 

progress and conclude in accordance with the schedule set forth in Exhibit A.  During the performance 

of the Services, Contractor shall provide the City with written progress reports at least once each 

month and at such additional intervals as City may from time to time request.  

Section 3.  Compensation. 

A. Except as may otherwise be provided in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or its

exhibits, Contractor shall invoice City once each month for the Services performed during the

preceding month. Such invoices shall itemize all charges in such detail as may reasonably be

required by City in the usual course of City business but shall include at least (i) the date of

performance of each of the Services, (ii) identification of the person who performed the Services,

(iii) a detailed description of the Services performed on each date, (iv) the hourly rate at which the

Services on each date are charged, (v) an itemization of all costs incurred and (vi) the total charges

for the Services for the month invoiced. As long as the Contractor performs the Services to the

satisfaction of the City, the City shall pay the Contractor an all inclusive compensation that shall

not exceed the amount as detailed in Exhibit A except pursuant to an authorized written change

Item 6J

111



order issued pursuant to Section 15 of this Agreement before the Services requiring additional 

compensation are performed. City shall pay Contractor no later than thirty (30) days after approval 

of the monthly invoice by Cityôs staff. 

 

B. The Contractor's compensation for the Services shall be full compensation for all indirect 

and direct personnel, materials, supplies, equipment and services incurred by the Contractor and 

used in carrying out or completing the Services. Payments shall be in accordance with the 

payment schedule established in Exhibit A or elsewhere in this Agreement or its exhibits.   

  

C. The City shall have the right to receive, upon request, documentation substantiating charges 

billed to the City pursuant to this Agreement.  The City shall have the right to perform an audit 

of the Contractor's relevant records pertaining to the charges.    

 

D. Any Services performed more than sixty (60) days prior to the date upon which they are 

invoiced to the City shall not be compensable.  

 

Section 4.  Professional Ability; Standard of Quality. 

 

City has relied upon the professional training and ability of Contractor to perform the Services 

described in Exhibit A as a material inducement to enter into this Agreement.  Contractor shall 

therefore provide properly skilled professional and technical personnel to perform all Services under 

this Agreement.  All Services performed by Contractor under this Agreement shall be in a skillful, 

workmanlike manner in accordance with applicable legal requirements and shall meet the standard of 

quality ordinarily to be expected of competent professionals in Contractorôs field of expertise. 

 

Section 5.  Indemnification. 

 

Contractor shall hold harmless and indemnify, including without limitation the cost to defend, the 

City and its officers, agents and employees from and against any and all claims, demands, damages, 

costs or liability that arise out of, or pertain to, or relate to the negligence, recklessness or willful 

misconduct of Contractor and/or its agents in the performance of the Services. This indemnity does 

not apply to liability for damages for death or bodily injury to persons, injury to property, or other 

loss, arising from the sole negligence, willful misconduct or material defects in design by the City or 

its agents, servants employees or independent contractors other than Contractor who are directly 

responsible to the City, or arising from the active negligence of the City officers, agents, employees 

or volunteers 

 

Section 6.  Insurance. 

 

Without limiting Contractorôs indemnification obligations provided for above, Contractor shall take 

out before beginning performance of the Services and maintain at all times during the life of this 

Agreement the following policies of insurance with insurers possessing a Best rating of not less than 

A.  Contractor shall not allow any subcontractor, professional or otherwise, to commence work on 

any subcontract until all insurance required of the Contractor has also been obtained by the 

subcontractor. 

 

Item 6J







Section 8.  Assignment. 

 

Contractor shall not assign any right or obligation under this Agreement without the Cityôs prior 

written consent.  Any attempted assignment of any right or obligation under this Agreement without 

the Cityôs prior written consent shall be void. 

 

Section 9.  Entire Agreement. 

 

This Agreement represents the entire understanding of City and Contractor as to those matters 

contained herein.  No prior oral or written understanding shall be of any force or effect with respect 

to those matters covered herein.  This Agreement may not be modified or altered except in writing 

signed by both parties. 

 

Section 10.  Jurisdiction. 

 

This Agreement shall be administered and interpreted under the laws of the State of California.  

Jurisdiction over any litigation arising from this Agreement shall be in the Superior Court of the State 

of California with venue in Placer County, California.   

 

Section 11.  Suspension of Services. 

 

Upon written request by Contractor, City may suspend, in writing, all or any portion of the Services 

if unforeseen circumstances beyond the control of the City and Contractor make normal progress of 

the Services impossible, impractical or infeasible. Upon written City approval to suspend 

performance of the Services, the time for completion of the Services shall be extended by the number 

of days performance of the Services is suspended.   

 

Section 12.  Termination of Services. 

 

City may at any time, at its sole discretion, terminate all or any portion of the Services and this 

Agreement upon seven (7) days written notice to Contractor.  Upon receipt of notice of termination, 

Contractor shall stop performance of the Services at the stage directed by City.  Contractor shall be 

entitled to payment within thirty (30) days for Services performed up to the date of receipt of the 

written notice of termination. Contractor shall not be entitled to payment for any Services performed 

after the receipt of the notice of termination unless such payment is authorized in advance in writing 

by the City. 

 

Should Contractor fail to perform any of the obligations required of Contractor within the time and in 

the manner provided for under the terms of this Agreement, or should Contractor violate any of the 

terms and conditions of this Agreement, City may terminate this Agreement by providing Contractor 

with seven (7) days written notice of such termination.  The Contractor shall be compensated for all 

Services performed prior to the date of receipt of the notice of termination. However, the City may 

deduct from the compensation which may be owed to Contractor the amount of damage sustained or 

estimated by City resulting from Contractorôs breach of this Agreement.  

 

Contractorôs obligations pursuant to Sections 5 and 6 of this Agreement shall survive termination, 

Item 6J







mediator, whose decision shall be binding on the parties.  In that case, the mediator shall 

select a neutral arbitrator from the then active list of retired judges or justices at the 

Sacramento Office of the JAMS.  The arbitration shall be conducted pursuant to the 

provisions of the California Arbitration Act, sections 1280-1294.2 of the California Code 

of Civil Procedure.  In such case, the provisions of Code of Civil Procedure 

Section 1283.05 and 1283.1 shall apply and are hereby incorporated into this Agreement.   

 
D.     This section 18 shall survive the termination or expiration of this Agreement. If there is no 

Sacramento office of JAMS, then the office of JAMS closest to the City shall be used 

instead of a Sacramento office. 

 

Section 19.  Severability. 

 

The provisions of this Agreement are severable.  If any portion of this Agreement is held invalid by 

an arbitrator or by a court of competent jurisdiction, the remainder of the Agreement shall remain in 

full force and effect unless amended or modified by the mutual written consent of the parties. 

 

Section 20.  Entire Agreement; Amendment. 

 

This Agreement, including all exhibits hereto, constitutes the complete and exclusive expression of 

the understanding and agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter hereof.  All 

prior written and oral communications, including correspondence, drafts, memoranda, and 

representations, are superseded in total by this Agreement.  This Agreement may be amended or 

extended from time to time only by written agreement of the parties hereto. 

 

Section 21.  Time of the Essence. 

 

Time is of the essence in the performance of the Services. The Contractor will perform its Services 

with due and reasonable diligence consistent with sound professional practices and shall devote such 

time to the performance of the Services as may be necessary for their timely completion.   

 

Section 22.  Written Notification. 

 

Except as otherwise specified in this Agreement, any notice, demand, request, consent, approval or 

communications that either party desires or is required to give to the other party shall be in writing 

and either served personally or sent by first class mail, postage prepaid and addressed as follows.  

Either party may change its address by notifying the other party in writing of the change of address. 

Notice shall be deemed communicated within two business days from the time of mailing if mailed 

within the State of California as provided in this Section. 

 

If to City:   City of Colfax 

     33 S. Main Street 

     Colfax, CA 95713 

 

 

 

Item 6J



If to Contractor:   Simpson & Simpson, Inc 

     P.O. Box 6746  

     Newcastle, CA 95604 

 

Section 23.  Execution. 

 

This Agreement may be executed in original counterparts, each of which shall constitute one and the 

same instrument and shall become binding upon the parties when at least one original counterpart is 

signed by both parties hereto.  In proving this Agreement, it shall not be necessary to produce or 

account for more than one such counterpart. 

 

Section 24. Successors.  This Agreement shall be binding on and inure to the benefit of the respective 

parties hereto except to the extent of any contrary provision in this Agreement. 

 

Section 25. Attorneyôs Fees.  If any party to this Agreement commences legal proceedings to enforce 

any of its terms or to recover damages for its breach, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 

its reasonable attorneyôs fees, costs and the expenses of expert witnesses, including any such fees 

costs and expenses incurred on appeal. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Agreement on the day first above 

written: 

 

 

CITY       CONTRACTOR 

 

Signature     Signature    

 

Printed Name     Printed Name    

 

Title       Title     

 

Date       Date     

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

 

 

       

City Attorney 

Item 6J



PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT 

.786-6001 .7/30/20 .City Of Colfax 
.POBOX702 
.Colfax Ca 95713 

Job location: Depot Street 

chris.clardy@colfax-ca.gov 

Total payable amount is due at completion of job 

Proposal prepared by: s'teH $�,r 

Re landscaping, erosion control, permits, engineering not included 

Acceptance of proposal Signature. _________ _ 

Date of acceptance. _________ _ 

Exhibit A Item 6J



PROPOSAL AND CONTRACT 

.,Simpson 8, .,Simpson inc. 

Job location: Shadow Wood Place 

Circle options as desired 

J"teH 

This proposal may be withdrawn by us if not accepted in: 10 days 

Shadow Wood Place: Off site storm drain connection 

Excavate between existing drain inlet and existing storm drain pipe. 
Install 20' to max 40' of 12" HDPE culvert and connect into lower drain box. 
Back fill with existing on site material.. ....................................................... $3898.00 

Acceptance of proposal 

Exhibit A Item 6J













_________________________________________________________________________________________  
City of Colfax CDBG Grant Administration and Labor Compliance 

Professional Service Agreement ï Adams Ashby Group Inc. Resolution __-2020 

 

City of Colfax 
City Council 

 

Resolution ̄  __-2020 
 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

WITH ADAMS ASHBY GROUP, INC. PROVIDING GRANT WRITING, ADMINISTRATION AND 

IMPLEMENTATION SERVICES FOR STATE AND FEDERAL GRANT PROGRAMS IN AN AMOUNT 

NOT TO EXCEED $500,000 FOR A 5-YEAR TERM. 

 

WHEREAS, On May 19, 2020, the City of Colfax issued a Request for Proposals to provide services to 

the City of Colfax related to Community Development Block Grant and Other State and Federal funding 

programs including Administration and Labor Standards Compliance Services (State Prevailing Wage and 

Davis Bacon Compliance); and, 

 

WHEREAS, staff received a total of 2 responses; Contractor Compliance and Monitoring, Inc. and 

Adams Ashby Group; and, 

 

WHEREAS, Adams Ashby Group, Inc. proposal was reviewed and found to provide the necessary 

qualifications, references, and costs were within the standards of services as evidenced by the cost reasonable 

analysis conducted by staff; and, 

 

WHEREAS, all costs to perform the work outlined in the proposal will be funded through awarded 

grant funds excluding costs for applications. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the City Council of the City of Colfax authorizes the City 

Manager to execute a Professional Services Agreement with Adams Ashby Group, Inc. providing Grant 

Writing, Administration and Implementation services for State and Federal Grant Programs in an amount not to 

exceed $500,000 for a 5-year term. 

 

THE FOREGOING RESOLUTION WAS DULY AND REGULARLY ADOPTED at the Regular 

Meeting of the City Council of the City of Colfax held on the 12th of August 2020 by the following vote of the 

Council: 

 

AYES: 

NOES: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 

________________________________________ 

     Marnie Mendoza, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

________________________________________ 

     Jaclyn Collier, City Clerk 

 







 Professional Services Agreement 
City of Colfax / Adams Ashby Group, Inc. 

 
 

 

Page 3 of 14 

5.5 During the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall not perform any work for 

another person or entity for whom Consultant was not working at the 

Commencement Date if both (i) such work would require Consultant to abstain 

from a decision under this Agreement pursuant to a conflict of interest statute and 

(ii) City has not consented in writing to Consultant’s performance of such work. 

5.6 Consultant represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel 

required to perform the services identified in the Scope of Services. All such 

services shall be performed by Consultant or under its supervision, and all 

personnel engaged in the work shall be qualified to perform such services. Lorie 

Adams shall be the Consultant Project Administrator and shall have direct 

responsibility for management of Consultant’s performance under this Agreement. 

No other person shall serve as Consultant Project Administrator without City’s 

prior written consent.  

5.7 This Agreement covers professional services of a specific and unique nature.  

Except as otherwise provided herein, Consultant shall not assign or transfer its 

interest in this Agreement or subcontract any services to be performed without 

amending this Agreement. 

5.8 Consultant shall be responsible to City for all services to be performed under this 

Agreement. All subconsultants shall be approved by the City Agreement 

Administrator and their billing rates identified in the Approved Fee Schedule, 

Exhibit B. City shall pay Consultant for work performed by its subconsultants 

(including labor) as set forth in the Approved Fee Schedule, Exhibit B.  Consultant 

shall be liable and accountable for any and all payments, compensation, and federal 

and state taxes to all subconsultants performing services under this Agreement.  

City shall not be liable for any payment, compensation, or federal and state taxes 

for any subconsultants. 

5.9 Consultant shall notify the City Agreement Administrator, in writing, of any change 

in name, ownership or control of Consultant’s firm or of any subconsultant. Change 

of ownership or control of Consultant’s firm may require an amendment to the 

Agreement. 

5.10 This Agreement is subject to prevailing wage law, for all work performed under the 

Agreement for which the payment of prevailing wages is required under the 

California Labor Code. In particular, Consultant acknowledges that prevailing 

wage determinations are available for the performance of inspection and survey 

work.   

130



 Professional Services Agreement 
City of Colfax / Adams Ashby Group, Inc. 

 
 

 

Page 4 of 14 

6. COMPENSATION 

6.1 City agrees to compensate Consultant for the services provided under this 

Agreement, and Consultant agrees to accept payment in accordance with the 

Approved Fee Schedule in full satisfaction for such services.  

6.2 Consultant shall submit to City an invoice, on a monthly basis or less frequently, 

for services performed pursuant to this Agreement. Each invoice shall identify the 

maximum amount payable above, the services rendered during the billing period, 

the amount due for the invoice, and the total amount previously invoiced. All labor 

charges shall be submitted in accordance with the Approved Fee Schedule, Exhibit 

B. City shall not withhold applicable taxes or other payroll deductions from 

payments made to Consultant except as otherwise required by law.  

 

6.3 The parties agree to meet and confer at mutually agreeable times to resolve any 

disputed amounts contained in an invoice submitted by Consultant.  

 

6.4 Payments for any services requested by City and not included in the Scope of 

Services may be made to Consultant by City on a time-and-materials basis pursuant 

to the Approved Fee Schedule and without amendment of this Agreement, so long 

as such payment does not cause the maximum amount payable above to be 

exceeded.  

7. OWNERSHIP OF WRITTEN PRODUCTS 

All reports, documents or other written material, and all electronic files, including 

computer-aided design files, developed by Consultant in the performance of this Agreement (such 

written material and electronic files are collectively known as “written products”) shall be and 

remain the property of City without restriction or limitation upon its use or dissemination by City 

except as provided by law. Consultant may take and retain copies of such written products as 

desired, but no such written products shall be the subject of a copyright application by Consultant. 

8. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

8.1       Consultant is and shall at all times remain as to City in all respects, a wholly 

independent contractor and not an employee or agent of the City.  

8.1.1    Consultant has and shall retain the right to exercise full control and supervision 

over the manner, means and methods of performing Consultant’s services under 

this Agreement and shall be free from the City’s control and direction in connection 

with the performance of Consultant’s services both under this Agreement and in 

fact.  



 Professional Services Agreement 
City of Colfax / Adams Ashby Group, Inc. 

 
 

 

Page 5 of 14 

8.1.2    Consultant and the City understand and agree that Consultant’s services under this 

Agreement are outside the scope and course of the City’s usual course of business 

and that Consultant is engaged in an independently established trade, occupation or 

business of the same nature as that involved in providing Consultant’s services 

under this Agreement.  

8.1.3    Consultant shall have no power to incur any debt, obligation, or liability on behalf 

of City or otherwise to act on behalf of City as an agent. Neither City nor any of its 

agents shall have control over the conduct of Consultant or any of Consultant’s 

employees, except as set forth in this Agreement. Consultant shall not represent that 

it is, or that any of its agents or employees are, in any manner employees or agents 

of City. 

8.1.4    Under no circumstances shall Consultant look to the City as its employer. 

Consultant shall not be entitled to any benefits. City makes no representation as to 

the effect of this independent contractor relationship on Consultant’s previously 

earned California Public Employees Retirement System (“CalPERS”) retirement 

benefits, if any, and Consultant specifically assumes the responsibility for making 

such a determination. Consultant shall be responsible for all reports and 

obligations including, but not limited to: social security taxes, income tax 

withholding, unemployment insurance, disability insurance, workers’ 

compensation, and other applicable federal and state taxes. 

 

9. AGREEMENT ADMINISTRATOR 

In performing services under this Agreement, Consultant shall coordinate all contact with 

City through its City Agreement Administrator.  City reserves the right to change this designation 

upon written notice to Consultant. All services under this Agreement shall be performed at the 

request of the City Agreement Administrator, who will establish the timetable for completion of 

services and any interim milestones. 

10. INDEMNIFICATION 

10.1 The parties agree that City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers should, 

to the fullest extent permitted by law, be protected from any and all loss, injury, 

damage, claim, lawsuit, cost, expense, attorneys’ fees, litigation costs, taxes, or any 

other cost arising out of or in any way related to the performance of this Agreement. 

Accordingly, the parties intend the provisions of this indemnity provision to be 

interpreted and construed to provide the City with the fullest protection possible 

under the law. Consultant acknowledges that City would not enter into this 

132



 Professional Services Agreement 
City of Colfax / Adams Ashby Group, Inc. 

 
 

 

Page 6 of 14 

Agreement in the absence of Consultant’s commitment to indemnify and protect 

City as set forth herein. 

10.2 To the fullest extent permitted by law, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, 

and when the City requests with respect to a claim provide a deposit for the defense 

of, and defend City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against 

any and all claims, losses, costs and expenses for any damage due to death or injury 

to any person, whether physical, emotional, consequential or otherwise, and injury 

to any property arising out of or in connection with Consultant’s alleged negligence, 

recklessness or willful misconduct or other wrongful acts, errors or omissions of 

Consultant or any of its officers, employees, servants, agents, or subcontractors, or 

anyone directly or indirectly employed by either Consultant or its subcontractors, 

in the performance of this Agreement or its failure to comply with any of its 

obligations contained in this Agreement, except such loss or damage which is 

caused by the sole active negligence or willful misconduct of the City. Such costs 

and expenses shall include reasonable attorneys’ fees due to counsel of City’s 

choice, expert fees and all other expenses of litigation. Consultant shall not be 

entitled to any refund of attorneys’ fees, defense costs or expenses in the event that 

it is adjudicated to have been non-negligent. 

10.3 City shall have the right to offset against any compensation due Consultant under 

this Agreement any amount due City from Consultant as a result of Consultant’s 

failure to pay City promptly any indemnification arising under this Section 10 of 

this Agreement and any amount due City from Consultant arising from 

Consultant’s failure either to (i) pay taxes on amounts received pursuant to this 

Agreement or (ii) comply with applicable workers’ compensation laws. 

10.4 The obligations of Consultant under this Section 10 of this Agreement are not 

limited by the provisions of any workers’ compensation or similar statute. 

Consultant expressly waives its statutory immunity under such statutes as to City, 

its officers, agents, employees and volunteers. 

10.5 Consultant agrees to obtain executed indemnity agreements with provisions 

identical to those set forth here in Section 10 of this Agreement from each and every 

subcontractor or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of 

Consultant in the performance of this Agreement. If Consultant fails to obtain such 

indemnity obligations from others, Consultant agrees to indemnify, hold harmless 

and defend City, its officers, agents, employees and volunteers from and against 

any and all claims, losses, costs and expenses for any damage due to death or injury 

to any person and injury to any property resulting from any alleged intentional, 

reckless, negligent, or otherwise wrongful acts, errors or omissions of Consultant’s 

subcontractors or any other person or entity involved by, for, with or on behalf of 

Consultant in the performance of this Agreement. Such costs and expenses shall 

include reasonable attorneys’ fees incurred by counsel of City’s choice.  





 Professional Services Agreement 
City of Colfax / Adams Ashby Group, Inc. 

 
 

 

Page 8 of 14 

consultants, personal injury, underground hazard, and explosion and 

collapse hazard where applicable.  

11.3.2 Automobile Liability Insurance for vehicles used in connection with the 

performance of this Agreement with minimum limits of One Million 

Dollars ($1,000,000) per claimant and One Million dollars ($1,000,000) per 

incident.  

11.3.3 Worker’s Compensation insurance if and as required by the laws of the State 
of California. 

11.3.4 Professional Errors and Omissions Insurance with coverage limits of not 

less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). 

11.4 Consultant shall require each of its subconsultants to maintain insurance coverage 

that meets all of the requirements of this Agreement provided however, that the 

City Agreement Administrator may waive the provision of Errors and Omissions 

Insurance by subconsultants in his or her sole discretion. 

11.5 The policy or policies required by this Agreement shall be issued by an insurer 

admitted in the State of California and with a rating of at least A:VII in the latest 

edition of Best’s Insurance Guide. 

11.6 Consultant agrees that if it does not keep the insurance coverages required by this 

Agreement in full force and effect, City may either (i) immediately terminate this 

Agreement; or (ii) take out the necessary insurance and pay the premium(s) thereon 

at Consultant’s expense. 

11.7 At all times during the term of this Agreement, Consultant shall maintain on file 

with City’s Risk Manager a certificate or certificates of insurance showing that the 

required coverages are in effect and naming City and its officers, employees, agents 

and volunteers as Additional Insureds. Prior to commencement of work under this 

Agreement, Consultant shall file with City’s Risk Manager such certificate(s) and 

Forms CG 20 10 07 04 and CG 20 37 07 04 or the substantial equivalent showing 

City as an Additional Insured. 

11.8 Consultant shall provide proof that policies of insurance required by this Agreement 

expiring during the term of this Agreement have been renewed or replaced with 

other policies providing at least the same coverage. Such proof will be furnished at 

least two weeks prior to the expiration of the coverages.  

11.9 The general liability and automobile policies of insurance required by this 

Agreement shall contain an endorsement naming City and its officers, employees, 

agents and volunteers as Additional Insureds. All of the policies required under this 



 Professional Services Agreement 
City of Colfax / Adams Ashby Group, Inc. 

 
 

 

Page 9 of 14 

Agreement shall contain an endorsement providing that the policies cannot be 

canceled or reduced except on thirty days’ prior written notice to City. Consultant 

agrees to require its insurer to modify the certificates of insurance to delete any 

exculpatory wording stating that failure of the insurer to mail written notice of 

cancellation imposes no obligation, and to delete the word “endeavor” with regard 

to any notice provisions.  

11.10 The insurance provided by Consultant shall be primary to any other coverage 

available to City. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by City and/or its 

officers, employees, agents or volunteers shall be in excess of Consultant’s 

insurance and shall not contribute with it.  

11.11 All insurance coverage provided pursuant to this Agreement shall not prohibit 

Consultant, and Consultant’s employees, agents or subcontractors, from waiving 

the right of subrogation prior to a loss. Consultant hereby waives all rights of 

subrogation against the City.   

11.12 Any deductibles or self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the 

City. At the option of City, Consultant shall either reduce or eliminate the 

deductibles or self-insured retentions with respect to City, or Consultant shall 

procure a bond in the amount of the deductible or self-insured retention to guarantee 

payment of losses and expenses. 

11.13 Procurement of insurance by Consultant shall not be construed as a limitation of 

Consultant’s liability or as full performance of Consultant’s duties to indemnify, 

hold harmless and defend under Section 10 of this Agreement. 

 

11.14 Consultant may be self-insured under the terms of this Agreement only with express 

written approval from the City. 

 

11.14.1 All self-insured retentions (SIR) must be disclosed to the City for approval 

and shall not reduce the limits of liability. 

 

11.14.2 Policies containing any SIR provision shall provide or be endorsed to 

provide that the SIR may be satisfied by either the named Insured or the 

City. 

 

11.15 City reserves the right to obtain a full certified copy of any Insurance policy and 

endorsements. Failure to exercise this right shall not constitute a waiver of the right 

to exercise later. 

 

12. MUTUAL COOPERATION 

136



 Professional Services Agreement 
City of Colfax / Adams Ashby Group, Inc. 

 
 

 

Page 10 of 14 

12.1 City shall provide Consultant with all pertinent data, documents and other requested 

information as is reasonably available for the proper performance of Consultant’s 

services under this Agreement. 

12.2 If any claim, action, or proceeding is brought against City relating to Consultant’s 

performance in connection with this Agreement, Consultant shall render any 

reasonable assistance that City may require in the defense of that claim, action, or 

proceeding. 

13. CONFIDENTIALITY 

All data, documents, discussion, or other information developed or received by Consultant 

or provided for performance of this Agreement are deemed confidential and shall not be disclosed 

by Consultant without prior written consent by City. City shall grant such consent if disclosure is 

legally required. Upon request, all City data shall be returned to City upon the termination or 

expiration of this Agreement. 

14. RECORDS AND INSPECTIONS 

Consultant shall maintain any and all ledgers, books of account, invoices, vouchers, 

canceled checks, and other records or documents evidencing or relating to charges for services or 

expenditures and disbursements charged to City under this Agreement for a minimum of three (3) 

years, or for any longer period required by law, from the date of final payment to Consultant under 

this Agreement. All such documents shall be made available for inspection, audit, and/or copying 

at any time during regular business hours, upon oral or written request of City. City shall further 

have the right to make transcripts therefrom and to inspect all program data, documents, 

proceedings, and activities. 

In addition, pursuant to Government Code Section 8546.7, if the amount of public funds 

expended under this Agreement exceeds ten thousand dollars, all such documents and this 

Agreement shall be subject to the examination and audit of the State Auditor, at the request of City 

or as part of any audit of City, for a period of three (3) years after final payment under the 

Agreement. 

15. PERMITS AND APPROVALS 

Consultant shall obtain, at its sole cost and expense, all permits and regulatory approvals 

necessary for Consultant’s performance of this Agreement. This includes, but shall not be limited 

to, professional licenses, encroachment permits and building and safety permits and inspections.  

16. NOTICES 

Any notices, bills, invoices, or reports required by this Agreement shall be deemed received 

on: (i) the day of delivery if delivered by hand, facsimile or overnight courier service during 

137

















“EXHIBIT B” 

APPROVED FEE SCHEDULE 
 

B-1 

166291.2 

Cost Proposal 
As the City has not formally received the State contract, we are providing an outline of our hourly 

rates and standard percentage cost based on the expected contract(s).   Our contracts are flat 

rate - not to exceed contracts based on application total(s) and percentages are outlined below. 

Work completed outside of a grant contract is billed hourly based on the rates provided.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CDBG Proposed Cost 

CARES Act General Administration  12% of Contract total 

General Administration (Standard Contract) 6% of Contract total 

Labor Compliance 
2-5% of project total based on size of 

project and number of subcontractors 

 
We would charge a flat rate monthly billing for the period of the project schedule. If additional 

work is requested or required outside the contract scope or if additional time is added that 

expands a project scope, it would be billed on a Time and Materials basis using the above hourly 

rate schedule provided above - no travel or additional charges are being proposed. All costs are 

included in the amounts provided in the cost proposal and hourly rate.  

 

2020 Cost Schedule Hourly Rate 

Principal $125.00 

Support Staff $85.00 

 





 Professional Services Agreement 
(City of Colfax / [Company or Individual]) 

 
 

3 

1. The Contractor with comply with Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965 entitled Equal Employment 

Opportunity as amended by Executive Order 11375 of October 1967 as supplemented in Department of 

Labor regulations (41 CFR chapter 60). 

2. The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, 

religion, sex, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are 

employed and that employees are treated equally during employment, without regard to race, color, religion, 

sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment 

upgrading, demotion, transfer, recruitment, or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of 

pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training including apprenticeship. The Contractor 

agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 

provided by the City Setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. 

3. The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the 

Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration for employment without regard to 

their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

4. The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which he has a collective 

bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding, a notice, to be provided by the agency contracting 

officer, advising the labor union or workers' representative of the contractor's commitments under Section 

202 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24, 1965, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous 

places available to employees and applicants for employment. 

5. The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order No. 11246 of September 

24, 1965, and by the rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will 

permit access to his books, records, and accounts by the contracting agency and the Secretary of Labor for 

purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders. 

6. In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this contract or 

with any of such rules, regulations, or orders, this contract may be cancelled, terminated or suspended in 

whole or in part and the contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts in 

accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order No.11246 of Sept. 24, 1965, and such other 

sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order No.11246 of 

September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by 

law. 

7. The Contractor will include the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every 

subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued 

pursuant to Section 204 of Executive Order No. 11246 of September 24,1965, so that such provisions will be 

binding upon each subcontractor or vendor. The contractor will take such action with respect to any 

subcontract or purchase order as may be directed by the Secretary of Labor as a means of enforcing such 

provisions including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided, however, that in the event the contractor 

becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such 

direction, the contractor may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of 

the United States. 

8. The Contractor shall file, and shall cause each of his subcontractors to file, Compliance Reports with the 

contracting agency or the Secretary of Labor as may be directed. Compliance Reports shall be filed within 

such times and shall contain such information as to the practices, policies, programs, and employment 

policies, programs, and employment statistics of the contractor and each subcontractor, and shall be in such 

form, as the Secretary of Labor may prescribe. 





 Professional Services Agreement 
(City of Colfax / [Company or Individual]) 

 
 

5 

The Contractor will take all necessary affirmative steps to assure that minority firms, women's business 

enterprises, and labor surplus area firms are used when possible. 

 

1. Affirmative steps shall include: 

i. Placing qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; 

 ii. Assuring that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever 

they are potential sources; 

iii. Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks    or quantities to 

permit maximum participation by small and minority business, and women's business enterprises; 

 

iv. Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage   participation by 

small and minority business, and women's business enterprises; 

 

v.  Using the services/assistance of the Small Business Administration (SBA), and the Minority Business 

Development Agency (MBDA) of the Department of Commerce. 

COPELAND “ANTI-KICKBACK” ACT (18 U.S.C. 874): 

Contractor shall comply with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (18 U.S.C. 874) as supplemented in 

Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3). 

COMPLIANCE WITH ALL FEDERAL LABOR STANDARD PROVISIONS: 

Contractor shall comply with all provisions contained in the form HUD-4010, Federal Labor Standards Provisions. 

COMPLIANCE WITH SECTIONS 103 AND 107 OF THE CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND 

SAFETY STANDARDS ACT (40 U.S.C. 327-330):                              

Contractor will comply with Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act (40 

U.S.C. 327-330) as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR part 5). Requires the contracting 

officer to insert the clauses set forth in 29 CFR part 5, Construction contracts awarded by grantees and 

subgrantees in excess of $2000, and in excess of $2500 for other contracts which involve the employment of 

mechanics or laborers) 

REQUIREMENTS AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO DATA AND DESIGN:                 

All data and design and engineering work created under this Agreement shall be owned by the City and shall not be 

subject to copyright protection. The rights to any invention which is developed in the course of this Agreement 

shall be the property of the City. 

REQUIREMENTS AND REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO REPORTING:                  

The City, State CDBG, HUD and the Comptroller General of the United States or any of their duly authorized 

representatives shall be granted access to any books, documents, papers and records of Contractor which are directly 

pertinent the contract. 

COMPLIANCE WITH CLEAN AIR ACT AND CLEAN WATER ACT:                          





 Professional Services Agreement 
(City of Colfax / [Company or Individual]) 

 
 

7 

Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), or its designee access to its premises, upon 

reasonable notice, during normal business hours for the purpose of interviewing employees and inspecting and 

copying such books, records, accounts, and other material that may be relevant to a matter under investigation for 

the purpose of determining compliance with California Public Contract Code (PCC) Section 10115 et seq., 

Government Code (GC) Section 8546.7 and 2 CCR 1896.60 et seq.   

 

The Contractor further agrees to maintain such records for a period of five (5) years after final payment under this 

Agreement or the resolution of any audit or lawsuit, whichever is later, and that on or before the end of the five (5) 

year audit/retention period, the Consultant shall release and deliver to the City all original records and related 

documentation.  

 

 

 

 


	Agenda 8-12-20 Regular Meeting
	Agenda Packet Draft
	06A - Minutes - Regular Meeting 7-8-2020
	06B - Minutes - Special Meeting 7-16-2020
	06C - Cash Summary - June 2020
	Cash Summary June 2020 Staff Report
	2020-12 Jun Cash Balance - Staff Report Attachments

	06D - Biennial 2020
	2020 Biennial Notice - SR
	Attachment 1 - Resolution 52-2018 Amending Conflict of Interest
	Attachment 2 - 2020 Biennial Notice

	06E - BV Contract
	BV Contract Extension for Building Insp services - SR
	BV Contract Extension for Building Insp services - Reso
	Attachment 2 - Bureau Veritas 6th Amendment
	Attachment 3 - Bureau Veritas 2015 Contract - FE

	06F - Koff and Associates HR Contract
	Koff and Associates HR Contract - SR
	Koff and Associates HR Contract - Resolution
	Attachment 2
	Koff & Associates Consultant Agreement - not signed
	Colfax HR SVCS Proposal 07 24 20


	06G - Kneeland St Road Rehab Contract Award - Simpson & Simpson
	Contract Award Kneeland St - Simpson & Simpson Inc. and Budget Admendment SR
	Contract Award Kneeland St - Simpson & Simpson Inc. and Budget Admendment Reso
	Attachment 2
	Contract Award Kneeland St - Simpson & Simpson Inc. and Budget Admendment- Contract
	Kneeland Street Improvements Simpson & Simpson Inc. Contract Exhibit A


	06H - Kneeland St Inspection Services Contract Award - Unico
	Construction Management and Inspection Services for Kneeland St-Unico SR
	Construction Management and Inspection Services for Kneeland St-Unico Resolution
	Attachment 2
	Kneeland Street Improvements Unico - Consulting Agreement
	Kneeland Street Proposal 08-4-2020
	Project Understanding
	A. construction inspection $15,900
	B. Submittal review $2,000
	C. materials testing $3,500
	time and materials FEES FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES



	06I - Geotech GHD
	GHD Geotech Inspection - SR
	GHD Geotech Inspection - Reso
	GHD Geotech Consultant Agreement
	GHD Scope and Fee for Geotechnical Work - Exhibit A

	06J - John McLaughlin Storm Drain Easement Improvement
	Contract Award with Simpson and Simpson Inc. for McLaughlin-SR
	Contract Award with Simpson and Simpson Inc. for McLaughlin -Resolution
	Attachment 2
	Simpson  Simpson McLaughlin Storm Drain Easement Improvements -Contract
	Exhibit A


	06K - Culver St Phase 2 NOC
	Culver Street Pavement Rehabilitation Project Phase 2 - Notice of Completion SR
	Culver Street Pavement Rehabilitation Project Phase 2 - Notice of Completion Resolution
	Culver Street Pavement Rehabilitation Project Phase 2 - Notice of Completion

	09A - CDBG Grant Mngmt & Labor Comp Cons. Agrmt - Adams Ashby Group
	CDBG Grant Management & Labor Compliance Agreement - Adams Ashby Group - SR
	CDBG Grant Management & Labor Compliance Agreement - Adams Ashby Group - Resolution
	CDBG Grant Management & Labor Compliance Agreement - Adams Ashby Group - Agreement UPDATED



	Name of Agency: City of Colfax
	Mailing Address: PO BOX 702, Colfax CA 95713
	Contact Person: Jaclyn Collier
	Phone Number: (530) 346-2313
	Email: city.clerk@colfax-ca.gov
	Alternate Email: accounting@colfax-ca.gov
	Amendment: No amdendment is required. (If your code is over five years old, amendments may be necessary)
	Include new positions: Off
	Revise disclosure categories: Off
	Revise the titles of existing positions: Off
	Delete titles of positions that have been abolished and/or positions that no longer make or participate in making governmental decisions: Off
	Other: Off
	Other (described): 
	Date: 


